
 
 

 
Page 1111 / 41414141 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of directors’ meeting of 30 July 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED     

HALFHALFHALFHALF----YEAR YEAR YEAR YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFINANCIAL STATEMENTSFINANCIAL STATEMENTSFINANCIAL STATEMENTS    

    AT AT AT AT 30 30 30 30 JUNE JUNE JUNE JUNE 2012012012012222    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 2222 of 41414141 
 

Consolidated income statements 
 

(in millions of Euros) 
NotesNotesNotesNotes    H1 2012 H1 2012 H1 2012 H1 2012     H1 2011 H1 2011 H1 2011 H1 2011 (1)(1)(1)(1)    

SalesSalesSalesSales    7 36,222 33,464 

Fuel and energy purchases  (17,950) (14,964) 

Other external expenses  (4,595) (4,483) 

Personnel expenses  (5,783) (5,420) 

Taxes other than income taxes  (1,597) (1,511) 

Other operating income and expenses 8 2,778 1,589 

Operating profit Operating profit Operating profit Operating profit before depreciation and amortisationbefore depreciation and amortisationbefore depreciation and amortisationbefore depreciation and amortisation     9,9,9,9,075075075075    8,8,8,8,675675675675    

Net changes in fair value on Energy and Commodity derivatives, excluding trading activities  98 (28) 

Net depreciation and amortisation  (3,283) (3,131) 

Net increases in provisions for renewal of property, plant and equipment operated under 
concessions      

(94) (208) 

(Impairment) / reversals 9 (294) (269) 

Other income and expenses 10 100 327 

Operating profitOperating profitOperating profitOperating profit     5,5,5,5,602602602602    5,5,5,5,366366366366    

Cost of gross financial indebtedness  (1,240) (1,107) 

Discount effect 11 (1,562) (1,524) 

Other financial income and expenses  992 821 

Financial resultFinancial resultFinancial resultFinancial result    11 (1,(1,(1,(1,810)810)810)810)    (1,(1,(1,(1,810)810)810)810)    

Income before taxes of consolidated companiesIncome before taxes of consolidated companiesIncome before taxes of consolidated companiesIncome before taxes of consolidated companies     3,3,3,3,792792792792    3,3,3,3,556556556556    

Income taxes 12 (1,235) (995) 

Share in income of associates 15 343 262 

Group net incomeGroup net incomeGroup net incomeGroup net income     2,2,2,2,900900900900    2,2,2,2,823823823823    

Net income attributable to nonNet income attributable to nonNet income attributable to nonNet income attributable to non----controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests      132132132132    176176176176    

EDF net incomeEDF net incomeEDF net incomeEDF net income     2,2,2,2,768768768768    2,2,2,2,647647647647    

             

Earnings per share (EDF share):Earnings per share (EDF share):Earnings per share (EDF share):Earnings per share (EDF share):             

Earnings per share in Euros  1111....50505050    1111....43434343    

Diluted earnings per share in Euros  1111....50505050    1111....43434343    

     

(1) Figures for first-half 2011 have been restated for the impact of the change in accounting method for actuarial gains and losses on 
post-employment benefits (see note 2). 
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Statements of net income and gains and losses  
recorded directly in equity 

 

(in millions of Euros) 
NotesNotesNotesNotes    H1 H1 H1 H1     2222000012121212    H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011(1)(1)(1)(1)    

Group net incomeGroup net incomeGroup net incomeGroup net income     2222,,,,900900900900    2222,,,,823823823823    

    

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets (2) 20.4.1 560 (172) 

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets transferred to income (3)  (183) (194) 

Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments (4) 20.4.2 (1,149) 161 

Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments transferred to income  241 309 

Changes in actuarial gains and losses on post-employment benefits (5) 21.4.1.1 (1,575) (650) 

Translation adjustments  997 (1,227) 

Taxes (6)  329 298 

Gains and losses recorded directly in equityGains and losses recorded directly in equityGains and losses recorded directly in equityGains and losses recorded directly in equity     (780)(780)(780)(780)    (1(1(1(1,,,,475475475475))))    

          

Net income and gains and losses recorded directly in equityNet income and gains and losses recorded directly in equityNet income and gains and losses recorded directly in equityNet income and gains and losses recorded directly in equity     2222,,,,120120120120    1111,,,,348348348348    

EDF net incomeEDF net incomeEDF net incomeEDF net income     1111,,,,899899899899    1111,,,,276276276276    

Net income attributable to nonNet income attributable to nonNet income attributable to nonNet income attributable to non----controlling interescontrolling interescontrolling interescontrolling intereststststs     221221221221    72727272    

 

 

(1) Figures for first-half 2011 have been restated for the impact of the change in accounting method for actuarial gains and losses 
on post-employment benefits (see note 2). 

(2) EDF’s share amounts to €560 million for first-half 2012 (€(172) million for first-half 2011). 

(3) Including €(147) million attributable to the sale of EnBW in first-half 2011. 

(4) EDF’s share amounts to €(1,149)  million for first-half 2012 (€130 million for first-half 2011). 

(5) Including €(1,535) million for controlled companies and €(40) million for associates. 

(6) Taxes break down as follows: 

(in millions of Euros) 

H1 2012H1 2012H1 2012H1 2012    H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011(1)(1)(1)(1)    

Taxes on changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets   (174) 66 

Taxes on changes in the fair value of hedging instruments 148 10 

Taxes on changes in actuarial gains and losses on post-employment benefits  355 222 

TotalTotalTotalTotal    329329329329    298298298298    
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Consolidated balance sheets 
 

ASSETSASSETSASSETSASSETS    
(in millions of Euros) 

NotesNotesNotesNotes    30/6/1230/6/1230/6/1230/6/12    31313131/12/11/12/11/12/11/12/11    (1)(1)(1)(1)    

Goodwill 13 10,655 11,648 

Other intangible assets  7,040 4,702 

Property, plant and equipment operated under French public electricity distribution 
concessions 

14 46,194 45,501 

Property, plant and equipment operated under concessions for other activities 14 7,119 6,022 

Property, plant and equipment used in generation and other tangible assets owned by the 
Group 

14 65,915 60,445 

Investments in associates 15 7,754 7,544 

Non-current financial assets 16 25,313 24,260 

Deferred tax assets  3,233 3,159 

NonNonNonNon----current assetscurrent assetscurrent assetscurrent assets     173,173,173,173,223223223223    163,281163,281163,281163,281    

Inventories  13,627 13,581 

Trade receivables 17 20,789 20,908 

Current financial assets 16 20,825 16,980 

Current tax assets  778 459 

Other receivables 18 11,593 10,309 

Cash and cash equivalents  4,920 5,743 

Current assetsCurrent assetsCurrent assetsCurrent assets     72,72,72,72,532532532532    67,98067,98067,98067,980    

Assets classified as held for saleAssets classified as held for saleAssets classified as held for saleAssets classified as held for sale    19 1 701 

TotalTotalTotalTotal    assetsassetsassetsassets     245,245,245,245,756756756756    231,962231,962231,962231,962    

 
 

    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
(in millions of Euros) 

NotesNotesNotesNotes    30/6/1230/6/1230/6/1230/6/12    31313131/12/11/12/11/12/11/12/11    (1)(1)(1)(1)    

Capital 20 924 924 

EDF net income and consolidated reserves  28,223 27,559 

Equity (EDF share)Equity (EDF share)Equity (EDF share)Equity (EDF share)     29,29,29,29,147147147147    28,48328,48328,48328,483    

Equity (non-controlling interests)    5,756 4,189 

Total equityTotal equityTotal equityTotal equity     34,34,34,34,903903903903    32,67232,67232,67232,672    

Provisions related to nuclear generation – Back-end nuclear cycle, plant decommissioning and 
last cores 

 37,265 37,198 

Provisions for decommissioning of non-nuclear facilities  1,024 809 

Provisions for employee benefits  16,287 14,611 

Other provisions  1,868 1,338 

NonNonNonNon----current provisionscurrent provisionscurrent provisionscurrent provisions    21.1 56,56,56,56,444444444444    53,95653,95653,95653,956    

Special French public electricity distribution concession liabilities   22 42,074 41,769 

Non-current financial liabilities 23.1 46,110 42,688 

Other liabilities 24 4,803 4,989 

Deferred tax liabilities  6,091 4,479 

NonNonNonNon----current liabilitiescurrent liabilitiescurrent liabilitiescurrent liabilities     155,155,155,155,522522522522    147,881147,881147,881147,881    

Current provisions 21.1 3,670 4,062 

Trade payables  11,792 13,681 

Current financial liabilities 23.1 20,067 12,789 

Current tax liabilities  512 571 

Other liabilities 24 19,290 19,900 

Current liabilitiesCurrent liabilitiesCurrent liabilitiesCurrent liabilities     55,55,55,55,331331331331    51,00351,00351,00351,003    

Liabilities related to assets classified as held for saleLiabilities related to assets classified as held for saleLiabilities related to assets classified as held for saleLiabilities related to assets classified as held for sale    19 - 406 

Total equity and liabilitiesTotal equity and liabilitiesTotal equity and liabilitiesTotal equity and liabilities     245,245,245,245,756756756756    231,962231,962231,962231,962    

 

(1) Figures for 2011 have been restated for the impact of the change in accounting method for actuarial gains and losses on post-
employment benefits (see note 2). 
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Consolidated cash flow statements 

 (in millions of Euros) 
NotesNotesNotesNotes    H1 2012 H1 2012 H1 2012 H1 2012     H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011(1)(1)(1)(1)    

Operating activities:Operating activities:Operating activities:Operating activities:             

Income before taxes of consolidated companiesIncome before taxes of consolidated companiesIncome before taxes of consolidated companiesIncome before taxes of consolidated companies     3,3,3,3,792792792792    3,53,53,53,556565656    

Impairment (reversals)  294 269 

Accumulated depreciation and amortisation, provisions and change in fair value  3,773 3,238 

Financial income and expenses  686 661 

Dividends received from associates  22 290 

Capital gains/losses  (275) (460) 

Change in working capital  (2,458) (1,519) 

Net cash flow from operations Net cash flow from operations Net cash flow from operations Net cash flow from operations      5555,,,,834834834834    6,0356,0356,0356,035    

Net financial expenses disbursed  (814) (1,007) 

Income taxes paid  (892) (582) 

Net cash flow from operating activitiesNet cash flow from operating activitiesNet cash flow from operating activitiesNet cash flow from operating activities     4,4,4,4,128128128128    4,4464,4464,4464,446    

    

Investing activities:Investing activities:Investing activities:Investing activities:         

Acquisition/disposal of companies, net of cash acquired/transferred (2)  (172) 3,708 

Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  (6,233) (4,883) 

Net proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  349 78 

Changes in financial assets  (4,368) (1,132) 

Net cash flow used in investing activitiesNet cash flow used in investing activitiesNet cash flow used in investing activitiesNet cash flow used in investing activities     (10,(10,(10,(10,424)424)424)424)    (2,229)(2,229)(2,229)(2,229)    

    

Financing activities: Financing activities: Financing activities: Financing activities:          

Transactions with non-controlling interests (3)  (237) (1,233) 

Dividends paid by parent company 20.3 (1,072) (1,068) 

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests  (115) (171) 

Treasury shares 20.2 (1) (6) 

Cash flows with shareholdersCash flows with shareholdersCash flows with shareholdersCash flows with shareholders     (1,(1,(1,(1,425)425)425)425)    (2,478)(2,478)(2,478)(2,478)    

Issuance of borrowings  8,489 2,228 

Repayment of borrowings  (1,786) (1,943) 

Funding contributions received for assets operated under concessions  85 93 

Investment subsidies  72 22 

Other cash flows from financing activitiesOther cash flows from financing activitiesOther cash flows from financing activitiesOther cash flows from financing activities     6,6,6,6,860860860860    400400400400    

Net cash flow from financing activitiesNet cash flow from financing activitiesNet cash flow from financing activitiesNet cash flow from financing activities     5,5,5,5,435435435435    (2,078)(2,078)(2,078)(2,078)    

    
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalentsNet increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalentsNet increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalentsNet increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    

 (861)(861)(861)(861)    139139139139    

             

Cash and cash equivalenCash and cash equivalenCash and cash equivalenCash and cash equivalents ts ts ts ----    opening balanceopening balanceopening balanceopening balance        5,5,5,5,743743743743 5,5675,5675,5675,567    

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (861) 139 

Effect of currency fluctuations  50 (76) 

Financial income on cash and cash equivalents  25 17 

Effect of reclassifications    (37) 46 

Cash and cash equivaCash and cash equivaCash and cash equivaCash and cash equivalents lents lents lents ----    closing balanceclosing balanceclosing balanceclosing balance      4,4,4,4,920920920920    5,6935,6935,6935,693    

     

(1) Figures for first-half 2011 have been restated for the impact of the change in accounting method for actuarial gains and losses 
on post-employment benefits (see note 2). 

(2) The impact of disposal of the investment in EnBW during first-half 2011 amounts to €3.8 billion (payment received of 
€4.5 billion net of €0.7 billion cash transferred in the sale). 

(3) Contributions via capital increases or reductions and acquisitions of additional interests in controlled companies.  

In first-half 2012, acquisition of additional interests in EnBW’s investment in its subsidiary ERSA amount to €252 million (see 
note 5.1).  

In first-half 2011, the acquisition of additional interests through the simplified alternative public cash or exchange offer for 
EDF Energies Nouvelles shares accounts for €1,292 million: €1,045 million in cash and €247 million in shares through the 
associated EDF share repurchase program.  



 

Page 6666 of 41414141 
 

Changes in consolidated equity 
 
The changes in equity between 1 January and 30 June 2012 are as follows: 
  

(in millions of Euros) 

CapitalCapitalCapitalCapital    
    
    
    
    

Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated 
reserves and reserves and reserves and reserves and 
net incomenet incomenet incomenet income    

    
    

Treasury Treasury Treasury Treasury 
sharessharessharesshares    

    
    
    

Translation Translation Translation Translation 
adjustmentsadjustmentsadjustmentsadjustments    

    
    
    

Impact of fair Impact of fair Impact of fair Impact of fair 
value value value value 

adjustment of adjustment of adjustment of adjustment of 
financial financial financial financial 

instrumentsinstrumentsinstrumentsinstruments (2)(2)(2)(2)    

Equity Equity Equity Equity     
(EDF share)(EDF share)(EDF share)(EDF share)    

    
    
    

Equity (nonEquity (nonEquity (nonEquity (non----
controlling controlling controlling controlling 
interests)interests)interests)interests)    

    
    

Total equityTotal equityTotal equityTotal equity    
    
    
    
    

Equity at Equity at Equity at Equity at 31/31/31/31/12/11 (restated) 12/11 (restated) 12/11 (restated) 12/11 (restated) (1)(1)(1)(1)    924924924924    27,51127,51127,51127,511    (26)(26)(26)(26)    1,1471,1471,1471,147    (1,073)(1,073)(1,073)(1,073)    28,48328,48328,48328,483    4,1894,1894,1894,189    32,67232,67232,67232,672    

Gains and losses recorded directly in equity - (1,200) - 888 (557) (869) 89 (780) 

Net income - 2,768 - - - 2,768 132 2,900 

Net income and Net income and Net income and Net income and gains and losses recorded gains and losses recorded gains and losses recorded gains and losses recorded 
directly in equitydirectly in equitydirectly in equitydirectly in equity    

----    1,1,1,1,568568568568    ----    888888888888    (557)(557)(557)(557)    1,1,1,1,899899899899    221221221221    2,2,2,2,120120120120    

Dividends paid - (1,072) - - - (1,072) (130) (1,202) 

Purchases/sales of treasury shares - - 3 - - 3 - 3 

Other changes (3) - (166) - - - (166) 1,476 1,310 

Equity at Equity at Equity at Equity at 30/30/30/30/6/126/126/126/12    924924924924    27,27,27,27,841841841841    (23)(23)(23)(23)    2,2,2,2,035035035035    (1,(1,(1,(1,630)630)630)630)    29,29,29,29,147147147147    5,5,5,5,756756756756    34,34,34,34,903903903903    

 

 

The changes in equity between 1 January and 30 June 2011 are as follows:  
 

(in millions of Euros) 

CapitalCapitalCapitalCapital    
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated 
reserves and reserves and reserves and reserves and 
net incomenet incomenet incomenet income    

Treasury Treasury Treasury Treasury 
sharessharessharesshares    

Translation Translation Translation Translation 
adjustmentsadjustmentsadjustmentsadjustments    

Impact of Impact of Impact of Impact of 
fair valufair valufair valufair value e e e 
adjustment adjustment adjustment adjustment 
of financial of financial of financial of financial 
instrumentsinstrumentsinstrumentsinstruments    

(2)(2)(2)(2)    

Equity (EDF Equity (EDF Equity (EDF Equity (EDF 
share)share)share)share)    

Equity (nonEquity (nonEquity (nonEquity (non----
controlling controlling controlling controlling 
interests)interests)interests)interests)    

Total equityTotal equityTotal equityTotal equity    

Equity at Equity at Equity at Equity at 31/12/31/12/31/12/31/12/2010201020102010    924924924924    29292929,,,,469469469469    (19)(19)(19)(19)    543543543543    400400400400    31313131,,,,317317317317    5555,,,,586586586586    36363636,,,,903903903903    

Restatements due to change of method (1) - (1,697) - 26 - (1,671) (121) (1,792) 

Equity at Equity at Equity at Equity at 31/31/31/31/12/2010 (restated)12/2010 (restated)12/2010 (restated)12/2010 (restated)    (1)(1)(1)(1)    924924924924    27272727,,,,772772772772    (19)(19)(19)(19)    569569569569    400400400400    29292929,,,,646646646646    5555,,,,465465465465    35353535,,,,111111111111    

Gains and losses recorded directly in equity - (445) - (1,074) 148 (1,371) (104) (1,475) 

Net income - 2,647 - - - 2,647 176 2,823 

Net income and gains and losses recorded Net income and gains and losses recorded Net income and gains and losses recorded Net income and gains and losses recorded 
ddddirectly in equityirectly in equityirectly in equityirectly in equity    

----    2222,,,,202202202202    ----    (1(1(1(1,,,,074)074)074)074)    148148148148    1111,,,,276276276276    72727272    1111,,,,348348348348    

EDF capital increase (4)  6 300 - - - 306 - 306 

Dividends paid - (1,068) - - - (1,068) (189) (1,257) 

Purchases/sales of treasury shares (4) - - (252) - - (252) - (252) 

Other changes (5) - (614) - - - (614) (1,364) (1,978) 

Equity at Equity at Equity at Equity at 30/30/30/30/6/20116/20116/20116/2011    930930930930    28282828,,,,592592592592    (271)(271)(271)(271)    (505)(505)(505)(505)    548548548548    29292929,,,,294294294294    3333,,,,984984984984    33333333,,,,278278278278    

 
(1) Figures at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 have been restated for the impact of the change in accounting method for 

actuarial gains and losses on post-employment benefits (see note 2). 

(2) These changes correspond to the effects of fair value adjustment of available-for-sale financial assets and amounts transferred to 
income following changes in their fair value, and the effects of fair value adjustment of hedging instruments and amounts 
transferred to income in respect of terminated contracts. For details see the statement of net income and gains and losses 
recorded directly in equity. 

(3) In first-half 2012, €1,387 million of other changes attributable to non-controlling interests correspond to the effects of the 
takeover of Edison (held 78.96% at 30 June 2012), including €991 million for direct minority shareholdings. 

(4) EDF’s capital increase and the higher treasury share purchases during first-half 2011 relate to the simplified alternative public cash 
or exchange offer for shares of EDF Energies Nouvelles.  

(5) In first-half 2011, other changes (EDF's share and the share attributable to non-controlling interests) include €(688) million and 
€(764) million respectively reflecting the effects of acquisition of minority shareholdings in EDF Energies Nouvelles. Other changes 
in equity attributable to non-controlling interests also include the effects of deconsolidation of EnBW, amounting to €(519) 
million. 
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NOTES TO THE NOTES TO THE NOTES TO THE NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONDENSED CONDENSED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FINANCIAL FINANCIAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTSSTATEMENTSSTATEMENTSSTATEMENTS    
 
 
Electricité de France (EDF or “the Company”) is a French société anonyme governed by French Law, and 
registered in France. 
The EDF group is an integrated energy company operating in all types of energy businesses: generation, 
transmission, distribution, supply and trading of energies.  
 
The Company’s condensed consolidated half-year financial statements at 30 June 2012 include the 
accounts of companies directly or indirectly under the exclusive control of the Company and its subsidiaries, 
which are fully consolidated, the accounts of jointly-controlled companies (joint ventures), which are 
proportionally consolidated, and the accounts of companies in which the Company exercises significant 
influence (associates), which are accounted for under the equity method. All these economic entities are 
collectively referred to as the “Group”. 
 
The Group’s condensed consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2012 were prepared under the 
responsibility of the Board of Directors and approved by the Directors at the Board meeting held  
on 30 July 2012. 
 
The comparative figures for 2011 reported in the notes to the financial statements have been restated as a 
result of the change in accounting method for actuarial gains and losses on post-employment benefits (see 
note 2). 

1111 MAIN MAIN MAIN MAIN GROUP ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND METHODSGROUP ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND METHODSGROUP ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND METHODSGROUP ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND METHODS    

1.11.11.11.1 DECLARATION DECLARATION DECLARATION DECLARATION OFOFOFOF    CONFORMITCONFORMITCONFORMITCONFORMITYYYY    AND GROUP ACCOUNTINGAND GROUP ACCOUNTINGAND GROUP ACCOUNTINGAND GROUP ACCOUNTING    POLICIESPOLICIESPOLICIESPOLICIES    

Pursuant to European regulation 1606/2002 of 19 July 2002 on the adoption of international accounting 
standards, the EDF group’s condensed consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2012 are prepared 
using the presentation, recognition and measurement rules set forth in the international accounting 
standards published by the IASB and approved by the European Union for application at 30 June 2012. 
These international standards are IAS (International Accounting Standards), IFRS (International Financial 
Reporting Standards), and SIC and IFRIC interpretations.  
 
The condensed consolidated half-year financial statements comply with standard IAS 34 on interim financial 
reporting. They do not therefore include all the information required for full annual financial statements, 
and are to be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2011.  
Apart from the changes indicated below, the accounting principles and methods are identical to those 
applied in the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2011, as described in note 1 to those 
financial statements. 

1.21.21.21.2 ACCOUNTING METHODS FACCOUNTING METHODS FACCOUNTING METHODS FACCOUNTING METHODS FOR THEOR THEOR THEOR THE    FIRST HALFFIRST HALFFIRST HALFFIRST HALF----YEARYEARYEARYEAR    OF OF OF OF 2012201220122012    

• Change of accounting optionChange of accounting optionChange of accounting optionChange of accounting option    concerning recognition of actuarial gains and losses on concerning recognition of actuarial gains and losses on concerning recognition of actuarial gains and losses on concerning recognition of actuarial gains and losses on postpostpostpost----
employment employment employment employment benefitbenefitbenefitbenefitssss     

 
IAS 19 allows the following methods for recognition of actuarial gains and losses on post-employment 
defined benefit plans: 

- Either the full amount of such gains and losses, or a portion as determined under the “corridor” 
method, is recorded through the income statement; the Group applied this approach until 31 
December 2011;  

- Or they are recorded in full through other components of net income and gains and losses 
recorded directly in equity. 

The Group decided to use the option to record actuarial gains and losses for post-employment benefits in 
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the statement of net income and gains and losses recorded directly in equity from 1 January 2012. The 
Group considers that this change will make information on post-employment benefits clearer and more 
comprehensible. 
This change of accounting option is applied retrospectively, as required by IAS 8. Note 2 presents a 
description of this change of accounting method and calculations of its principal effects. 
 

• New standardsNew standardsNew standardsNew standards    andandandand    interprinterprinterprinterpreeeetationstationstationstations    
 

Apart from the change presented above and the valuation methods specific to interim financial statements 
described in note 1.3, the accounting and valuation methods applied by the Group in the consolidated 
interim financial statements at 30 June 2012 are identical to those used in the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011. 
 
The amendment to IFRS 7, “Financial instruments: disclosures – Transfers of financial assets” adopted by 
the European Union in 2011 became mandatory on 1 January 2012. As IFRS 7 concerns disclosures, this 
amendment has no impact on the accounting methods applied in the consolidated financial statements. 
 
The Group has not opted for early application of any standards, amendments or interpretation. 

1.31.31.31.3 VALUATION METHODS SPVALUATION METHODS SPVALUATION METHODS SPVALUATION METHODS SPECIFIC TO INTERIM FIECIFIC TO INTERIM FIECIFIC TO INTERIM FIECIFIC TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNANCIAL STATEMENTSNANCIAL STATEMENTSNANCIAL STATEMENTS    

The following valuation methods specific to interim financial statements have been applied. 
 

1.3.1 1.3.1 1.3.1 1.3.1 EMPLOYEE BENEFITSEMPLOYEE BENEFITSEMPLOYEE BENEFITSEMPLOYEE BENEFITS    
 
The amount of the obligation corresponding to post-employment benefits and other long-term benefits at 
30 June 2012 was calculated by projecting the obligation at 31 December 2011 over one half-year, taking 
into account the benefits paid out and the changes in fund assets. 
The actuarial assumptions used to calculate employee benefits for interim financial statements are identical 
to those used for the previous annual financial statements, unless significant developments arise for certain 
parameters, for example the discount rate. 
 

1.3.2 1.3.2 1.3.2 1.3.2 INCOME TAXESINCOME TAXESINCOME TAXESINCOME TAXES    
 
For interim financial statements, income tax (current and deferred) is generally calculated by applying the 
last known estimated effective tax rate for the prevailing fiscal year for each entity or tax group to the 
consolidated companies' pre-tax income. 
 

1.3.3 1.3.3 1.3.3 1.3.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION QUOTASGREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION QUOTASGREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION QUOTASGREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION QUOTAS    
 
When a Group entity’s estimated emissions are higher than the quotas allocated for the period less any spot 
or forward transactions, a provision is established to cover the excess emissions. For interim financial 
statements, the amount of the provision is calculated pro rata to the emission output during the half-year. 
The provision is equivalent to the acquisition cost up to the amount acquired on the spot or forward 
markets, and based on market prices for the balance. 

1.41.41.41.4 MANAGEMENT JUDGMENT MANAGEMENT JUDGMENT MANAGEMENT JUDGMENT MANAGEMENT JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATESAND ESTIMATESAND ESTIMATESAND ESTIMATES    

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of judgments, best estimates and assumptions 
in determining the value of assets and liabilities, income and expenses recorded for the period, and 
consideration of positive and negative contingencies at the closing date. The figures in future financial 
statements may differ from current estimates due to changes in these assumptions or economic conditions. 
The principal sensitive accounting methods involving use of estimates and judgments are the same as those 
described in note 1.3.2 to the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2011. 
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1.51.51.51.5 SEASONAL NATURE OF TSEASONAL NATURE OF TSEASONAL NATURE OF TSEASONAL NATURE OF THE BUSINESSHE BUSINESSHE BUSINESSHE BUSINESS    

Interim sales and operating profit before depreciation and amortisation are affected by significant seasonal 
factors in the calendar year, principally in France. The variations observed are mainly associated with the 
weather conditions and tariff structures specific to each period. 
 
To illustrate this, the table below shows the sales and operating profit before depreciation and amortisation 
for the first half and second half of 2011: 
 
(in millions of Euros) H1H1H1H1    2012012012011111 H2H2H2H2    2222011011011011    2012012012011111    

Sales 33,464 31,843 65,307 

Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation 8,675 6,264 14,939 

2222 COMPARABILITCOMPARABILITCOMPARABILITCOMPARABILITYYYY    

2.12.12.12.1 CHANGE IN CHANGE IN CHANGE IN CHANGE IN RECOGNITION OFRECOGNITION OFRECOGNITION OFRECOGNITION OF    ACTUARIAL GAINS AND ACTUARIAL GAINS AND ACTUARIAL GAINS AND ACTUARIAL GAINS AND LOSSES RELATED TO LOSSES RELATED TO LOSSES RELATED TO LOSSES RELATED TO 
POSTPOSTPOSTPOST----EMPLOYMENT BENEFITSEMPLOYMENT BENEFITSEMPLOYMENT BENEFITSEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS    

Since 1 January 2012, the Group has recorded actuarial gains and losses related to post-employment 
defined benefit plans in the statement of net income and gains and losses recorded directly in equity, under 
the option allowed by IAS 19. 
Under this option, all actuarial gains and losses on post-employment benefits generated by changes in 
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of net income and gains and losses recorded directly 
in equity. The Group has thus stopped using the “corridor” method and now recognises all actuarial gains 
and losses in full. 
 
As this is a change of accounting method, in compliance with IAS 8, comparative prior year figures resulting 
from retrospective application of this method are presented. 
 
The impact on equity (EDF share) amounts to € (1,671) million at 1 January 2011 and € (2,087) million at 
31 December 2011. 
 
The impact at 1 January 2011 mainly concerns the France and United Kingdom segments (€ (1,010) million 
and € (566) million respectively). 
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2.22.22.22.2 IMPACT IMPACT IMPACT IMPACT ON THE INCOME STATEMON THE INCOME STATEMON THE INCOME STATEMON THE INCOME STATEMENT FOR ENT FOR ENT FOR ENT FOR THE FIRST HALF OFTHE FIRST HALF OFTHE FIRST HALF OFTHE FIRST HALF OF    2011201120112011    

(in millions of Euros) 

H1H1H1H1    2011201120112011    
AS AS AS AS     

PUBLIPUBLIPUBLIPUBLISHEDSHEDSHEDSHED        

IMPACTS IMPACTS IMPACTS IMPACTS 
OFOFOFOF    IAS 19IAS 19IAS 19IAS 19    
OPTIONOPTIONOPTIONOPTION    

H1H1H1H1    2011201120112011    
RESTATEDRESTATEDRESTATEDRESTATED    

    

Sales 33,464 - 33,464 

Fuel and energy purchases (14,964) - (14,964) 

Other external expenses (4,483) - (4,483) 

Personnel expenses (5,479) 59 (5,420) 

Taxes other than income taxes (1,511) - (1,511) 

Other operating income and expenses 1,589 - 1,589 

Operating profit before depreciation and amortOperating profit before depreciation and amortOperating profit before depreciation and amortOperating profit before depreciation and amortisatisatisatisationionionion    8,6168,6168,6168,616    59595959    8,6758,6758,6758,675    

Net changes in fair value on Energy and Commodity derivatives, excluding trading activities (28) - (28) 

Net depreciation and amortisation (3,131) - (3,131) 

Net increases in provisions for renewal of property, plant and equipment operated under 
concessions 

(208) - (208) 

(Impairment) / reversals (269) - (269) 

Other income and expenses  276 51 327 

Operating profitOperating profitOperating profitOperating profit    5,2565,2565,2565,256    110110110110    5,3665,3665,3665,366    

Cost of gross financial indebtedness (1,107) - (1,107) 

Discount effect (1,524) - (1,524) 

Other financial income and expenses 821 - 821 

Financial resultFinancial resultFinancial resultFinancial result    (1,810)(1,810)(1,810)(1,810)    ----    (1,810)(1,810)(1,810)(1,810)    

Income before taxes of consolIncome before taxes of consolIncome before taxes of consolIncome before taxes of consolidated companiesidated companiesidated companiesidated companies    3,4463,4463,4463,446    110110110110    3,5563,5563,5563,556    

Income taxes (977) (18) (995) 

Share in income of associates 259 3 262 

Group net incomeGroup net incomeGroup net incomeGroup net income    2,7282,7282,7282,728    95959595    2,8232,8232,8232,823    

Net income attributable to nonNet income attributable to nonNet income attributable to nonNet income attributable to non----controlling interestscontrolling interestscontrolling interestscontrolling interests    174174174174    2222    176176176176    

EDF net incomeEDF net incomeEDF net incomeEDF net income    2,5542,5542,5542,554    93939393    2,6472,6472,6472,647    

                

2.32.32.32.3 IMPACT IMPACT IMPACT IMPACT ON THE STAON THE STAON THE STAON THE STATEMETEMETEMETEMENT OF NET INCOME ANDNT OF NET INCOME ANDNT OF NET INCOME ANDNT OF NET INCOME AND    GAINS AND GAINS AND GAINS AND GAINS AND LOSSES LOSSES LOSSES LOSSES 
RECORDED DIRECTLY INRECORDED DIRECTLY INRECORDED DIRECTLY INRECORDED DIRECTLY IN    EQUITY FOR THE FIRSTEQUITY FOR THE FIRSTEQUITY FOR THE FIRSTEQUITY FOR THE FIRST    HALF OF HALF OF HALF OF HALF OF 2011201120112011    

 

(in millions of Euros) 

H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011    
AS AS AS AS     

PUBLISHED PUBLISHED PUBLISHED PUBLISHED     

IMPACTS IMPACTS IMPACTS IMPACTS 
OF IAS 19 OF IAS 19 OF IAS 19 OF IAS 19 
OPTIONOPTIONOPTIONOPTION    

H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011    
RESTATEDRESTATEDRESTATEDRESTATED    

    

Group net incomeGroup net incomeGroup net incomeGroup net income    2222,,,,728728728728 95959595    2222,,,,823823823823    

   

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets  (172) - (172) 

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets transferred to income (194) - (194) 

Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments  161 - 161 

Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments transferred to income 309 - 309 

Changes in actuarial gains and losses on post-employment benefits  - (650) (650) 

Translation adjustments (1,227) - (1,227) 

Taxes  76 222 298 

Gains and losses recorded directly in equityGains and losses recorded directly in equityGains and losses recorded directly in equityGains and losses recorded directly in equity    (1(1(1(1,,,,047)047)047)047) (428)(428)(428)(428)    (1(1(1(1,,,,475)475)475)475)    

         

Net income and gains and losses recorded directly in equityNet income and gains and losses recorded directly in equityNet income and gains and losses recorded directly in equityNet income and gains and losses recorded directly in equity    1111,,,,681681681681 (333)(333)(333)(333)    1111,,,,348348348348    

EDF net incomeEDF net incomeEDF net incomeEDF net income    1111,,,,628628628628 (352)(352)(352)(352)    1111,,,,276276276276    

Net income attributable to nonNet income attributable to nonNet income attributable to nonNet income attributable to non----controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests     53535353 19191919    72727272    
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2.42.42.42.4 IMPACT IMPACT IMPACT IMPACT ON THE BALANCE SHEETON THE BALANCE SHEETON THE BALANCE SHEETON THE BALANCE SHEET    AT AT AT AT 31 DECEMBER31 DECEMBER31 DECEMBER31 DECEMBER    2011201120112011    

ASSETSASSETSASSETSASSETS    
(in millions of Euros) 

2011201120112011    
AS AS AS AS     

PUBLISHED PUBLISHED PUBLISHED PUBLISHED     

IMPACTS IMPACTS IMPACTS IMPACTS     
OF IAS 19 OF IAS 19 OF IAS 19 OF IAS 19 
OPTIONOPTIONOPTIONOPTION    

2011201120112011    
RESTATEDRESTATEDRESTATEDRESTATED    

Goodwill 11,648 - 11,648

Other intangible assets 4,702 - 4,702

Property, plant and equipment operated under French public electricity 
distribution concessions 

45,501 - 45,501

Property, plant and equipment operated under concessions for other activities 6,022 - 6,022

Property, plant and equipment used in generation and other tangible assets 
owned by the Group 

60,445 - 60,445

Investments in associates 7,684 (140) 7,544

Non-current financial assets 24,517 (257) 24,260

Deferred tax assets 2,507 652 3,159

NonNonNonNon----current assetscurrent assetscurrent assetscurrent assets    163163163163,,,,026026026026 255255255255 163163163163,,,,281281281281

Inventories 13,581 - 13,581

Trade receivables 20,908 - 20,908

Current financial assets 16,980 - 16,980

Current tax assets 459 - 459

Other receivables 10,309 - 10,309

Cash and cash equivalents 5,743 - 5,743

Current assetsCurrent assetsCurrent assetsCurrent assets    67676767,,,,980980980980 - 67676767,,,,980980980980

Assets classified as held for saleAssets classified as held for saleAssets classified as held for saleAssets classified as held for sale    701 - 701

Total assetsTotal assetsTotal assetsTotal assets    231231231231,,,,707707707707 255255255255 231231231231,,,,962962962962

 
 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
(in millions of Euros) 

2011201120112011    
AS AS AS AS     

PUBLISHED PUBLISHED PUBLISHED PUBLISHED     

IMPACTS IMPACTS IMPACTS IMPACTS     
OF OF OF OF IAS 19 IAS 19 IAS 19 IAS 19 
OPTIONOPTIONOPTIONOPTION    

2011201120112011    
RESTATEDRESTATEDRESTATEDRESTATED    

Capital 924 - 924

EDF net income and consolidated reserves 29,646 (2,087) 27,559

Equity (EDF share)Equity (EDF share)Equity (EDF share)Equity (EDF share)    30303030,,,,570570570570 (2(2(2(2,,,,087)087)087)087) 28282828,,,,483483483483

Equity (non-controlling interests)   4,337 (148) 4,189

Total equityTotal equityTotal equityTotal equity    34343434,,,,907907907907 (2(2(2(2,,,,235)235)235)235) 32323232,,,,672672672672

Provisions related to nuclear generation – Back-end nuclear cycle, plant 
decommissioning and last cores 

37,198 - 37,198

Provisions for decommissioning of non-nuclear facilities 809 - 809

Provisions for employee benefits 12,215 2,396 14,611

Other provisions 1,338 - 1,338

NonNonNonNon----current provisionscurrent provisionscurrent provisionscurrent provisions    51515151,,,,560560560560 2222,,,,396396396396 53535353,,,,956956956956

Special French public electricity distribution concession liabilities   41,769 - 41,769

Non-current financial liabilities 42,688 - 42,688

Other liabilities 4,989 - 4,989

Deferred tax liabilities 4,479 - 4,479

NonNonNonNon----current liabilitiescurrent liabilitiescurrent liabilitiescurrent liabilities    145145145145,,,,485485485485 2222,,,,396396396396 147147147147,,,,881881881881

Current provisions 3,968 94 4,062

Trade payables 13,681 - 13,681

Current financial liabilities 12,789 - 12,789

Current tax liabilities 571 - 571

Other liabilities 19,900 - 19,900

Current liabiliCurrent liabiliCurrent liabiliCurrent liabilitiestiestiesties    50505050,,,,909909909909 94949494 51515151,,,,003003003003

Liabilities related to assets classified as held for saleLiabilities related to assets classified as held for saleLiabilities related to assets classified as held for saleLiabilities related to assets classified as held for sale    406 - 406

Total equity and liabilitiesTotal equity and liabilitiesTotal equity and liabilitiesTotal equity and liabilities    231231231231,,,,707707707707 255255255255 231231231231,,,,962962962962
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2.52.52.52.5 IMPACT IMPACT IMPACT IMPACT ON THE STATEMENT OF ON THE STATEMENT OF ON THE STATEMENT OF ON THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FCASH FLOWS FOR THE FCASH FLOWS FOR THE FCASH FLOWS FOR THE FIRST HALF OF IRST HALF OF IRST HALF OF IRST HALF OF 2011201120112011    

(in millions of Euros) 

H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011    
AS AS AS AS     

PUBLISHED PUBLISHED PUBLISHED PUBLISHED     

IMPACTS OF IMPACTS OF IMPACTS OF IMPACTS OF 
IAS 19 IAS 19 IAS 19 IAS 19 
OPTIONOPTIONOPTIONOPTION    

H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011H1 2011    
RESTATEDRESTATEDRESTATEDRESTATED    

Operating activities:Operating activities:Operating activities:Operating activities:        

Income before taxes of consolidated companiesIncome before taxes of consolidated companiesIncome before taxes of consolidated companiesIncome before taxes of consolidated companies    3333,,,,446446446446    110110110110    3333,,,,556556556556    

Impairment (reversals) 269 - 269 

Accumulated depreciation and amortisation, provisions and change in fair value 3,297 (59) 3,238 

Financial income and expenses 661 - 661 

Dividends received from associates 290 - 290 

Capital gains/losses (409) (51) (460) 

Change in working capital (1,519) - (1,519) 

Net cash flow from operations Net cash flow from operations Net cash flow from operations Net cash flow from operations     6666,,,,035035035035    ----    6666,,,,035035035035    

Net financial expenses disbursed (1,007) - (1,007) 

Income taxes paid (582) - (582) 

Net cash flow from operating activitiesNet cash flow from operating activitiesNet cash flow from operating activitiesNet cash flow from operating activities    4444,,,,446446446446    ----    4444,,,,446446446446    

    

Investing activities:Investing activities:Investing activities:Investing activities:             

Acquisition/disposal of companies, net of cash acquired/transferred  3,708 - 3,708 

Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (4,883) - (4,883) 

Net proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 78 - 78 

Changes in financial assets (1,132) - (1,132) 

Net cash flow used in investing activitiesNet cash flow used in investing activitiesNet cash flow used in investing activitiesNet cash flow used in investing activities    (2(2(2(2,,,,229)229)229)229)    ----    (2(2(2(2,,,,229)229)229)229)    

    

Financing acFinancing acFinancing acFinancing activitiestivitiestivitiestivities: : : :              

Transactions with non-controlling interests  (1,233) - (1,233) 

Dividends paid by parent  company (1,068) - (1,068) 

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (171) - (171) 

Treasury shares (6) - (6) 

Cash flows with shareholdersCash flows with shareholdersCash flows with shareholdersCash flows with shareholders    (2(2(2(2,,,,478)478)478)478)    - (2(2(2(2,,,,478)478)478)478)    

Issuance of borrowings 2,228 - 2,228 

Repayment of borrowings (1,943) - (1,943) 

Funding contributions received for assets operated under concessions 93 - 93 

Investment subsidies 22 - 22 

Other cash flows from financing activitiesOther cash flows from financing activitiesOther cash flows from financing activitiesOther cash flows from financing activities    400400400400    - 400400400400    

NetNetNetNet    cash flow cash flow cash flow cash flow used inused inused inused in    financing activitiesfinancing activitiesfinancing activitiesfinancing activities    (2(2(2(2,,,,078)078)078)078)    ----    (2(2(2(2,,,,078)078)078)078)    

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalentsNet increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalentsNet increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalentsNet increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    139139139139        139139139139    

             

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents ----    opening balanceopening balanceopening balanceopening balance    5555,,,,567567567567    ----    5555,,,,567567567567    

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 139 - 139 

Effect of currency fluctuations (76) - (76) 

Financial income on cash and cash equivalents 17 - 17 

Effect of reclassifications   46 - 46 

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents ----    closing balanceclosing balanceclosing balanceclosing balance     5555,,,,693693693693    ----    5555,,,,693693693693    
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3333 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS OF THE FIRST HALFSIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS OF THE FIRST HALFSIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS OF THE FIRST HALFSIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS OF THE FIRST HALF----YEAR YEAR YEAR YEAR OF OF OF OF 
2012201220122012    

3.13.13.13.1 EDISON EDISON EDISON EDISON     

3.1.13.1.13.1.13.1.1 TakeoverTakeoverTakeoverTakeover    of Edison by the EDF groupof Edison by the EDF groupof Edison by the EDF groupof Edison by the EDF group    

Following fulfilment of the conditions for the operation, on 24 May 2012 the EDF group and its Italian 
partners finalised the takeover of the energy group Edison. The principles of the final agreement are 
consistent with the preliminary agreement signed by the parties on 26 December 2011.  
  
The Group thus took control of Edison by purchasing Delmi’s entire investment in TdE (50%) for a total of 
€784 million, corresponding to the negotiated price of €0.89 per Edison share. Following this acquisition 
the Group now holds 78.96% of the capital and 80.64% of the voting rights in Edison. 
 
At the same time as EDF took control of Edison, Delmi took control of Edipower by purchasing the 
investments in Edipower held by Edison (50%) and ALPIQ (20%) for the total sum of €884 million. 
Edison and Edipower also signed a long-term (6-year) gas supply contract to cover 50% of Edipower’s gas 
requirements. 
 
In compliance with Italian stock market regulations, the EDF Group launched a mandatory tender offer for 
remaining Edison shares at the price of €0.89 per ordinary share. The additional cost of raising this offer 
price from the €0.84 envisaged in the preliminary agreement of 26 December 2011 will be borne equally by 
the EDF group and Delmi, totalling a maximum of €24 million for each, depending on the number of shares 
tendered to the offer. This offer was opened on 2 July 2012 and is due to close on 3 August 2012 unless 
extended.  
  

3.1.23.1.23.1.23.1.2 Accounting treatmentAccounting treatmentAccounting treatmentAccounting treatment    of the operationof the operationof the operationof the operation    

 
The purchase of 50% of TdE from Delmi gave the EDF group control over the Edison group and TdE as of 
24 May 2012. Although the mandatory tender offer for Edison shares launched on 2 July 2012 is an 
inevitable consequence of acquisition of TdE under Italian stock market regulations, for accounting 
purposes it has been considered as a separate operation from the takeover of Edison, since: 

• Minority shareholders remain free to accept or refuse the offer; 

• Control was acquired on 24 May 2012, independently of the number of shares minority 
shareholders will tender to the offer, and cannot be called into question. 

 
Consequently, as required by IFRS 3 (revised) (IFRS 3), the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired from 
Edison and TdE are recorded at fair value at the date control was acquired. The Group has opted to state 
non-controlling interests at fair value in application of the “full goodwill” method. 
In accordance with IFRS 3, the values determined are provisional and the Group has 12 months to finalise 
allocation of the acquisition price. 
Delmi’s share of the cost of the mandatory tender offer for Edison shares has been considered as a 
purchase price adjustment clause for the investment in TdE/Edison. 
 
Application of IFRS 3 to the takeover of Edison and TdE is therefore reflected in the following items in the 
Group’s consolidated financial statements: 

• A loss on sale of €(1,090) million resulting from remeasurement of the previous holding in Edison 
to “market participant(1)“ fair value at the date control was acquired, 

• Negative goodwill of €1,023 million. 
 

                                                      
1 The “market participant” fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in 
an arm’s length transaction. 
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Since the price for the sale of Edison’s investment in Edipower to Delmi was higher than defined in the 
preliminary agreement of 26 December 2011, a reversal of impairment has been booked in the first-half 
2012 income statement for a total amount of €39 million (EDF’s share). 
Finally, acquisition expenses amounting to €(23) million before taxes were recognised in first-half 2012.  
 
Overall, the takeover of Edison and TdE thus generates a €(51) million expense recognised in the first-half 
2012 consolidated income statement under “Other income and expenses”. 

3.1.33.1.33.1.33.1.3 DetDetDetDetermination of the ermination of the ermination of the ermination of the losslosslossloss    on saleon saleon saleon sale    of the previouslyof the previouslyof the previouslyof the previously----held investmentheld investmentheld investmentheld investment        

In application of IFRS 3, a loss on sale is recognised, equal to the difference between the net consolidated 
value and the “market participant” fair value for the Group’s investment in the Edison and TdE subgroups 
at the date of the takeover. 
 
The “market participant” fair value is the Edison share value on the market, i.e. the transaction price with 
Delmi and minority shareholders through the mandatory tender offer launched on 2 July 2012 (€0.89 per 
share). 
 
The loss on sale has been recorded under “Other income and expenses” in the half-year consolidated 
financial statements. It was determined as follows. 
 

(in millions of Euros) 
        

(A) “(A) “(A) “(A) “MMMMarket participant” fair valuearket participant” fair valuearket participant” fair valuearket participant” fair value    
    

1,709 

(B) (B) (B) (B) NNNNet book value of previouslyet book value of previouslyet book value of previouslyet book value of previously----held investmentheld investmentheld investmentheld investment    2,804 

    
(C) (C) (C) (C) Effect of transfer to income of gains and losses Effect of transfer to income of gains and losses Effect of transfer to income of gains and losses Effect of transfer to income of gains and losses 
recorded directly in equityrecorded directly in equityrecorded directly in equityrecorded directly in equity        
    

5 

(A (A (A (A ––––    B + C) Loss on saleB + C) Loss on saleB + C) Loss on saleB + C) Loss on sale    (1,(1,(1,(1,090) 090) 090) 090) 

    

3.1.43.1.43.1.43.1.4 Edison Edison Edison Edison initialinitialinitialinitial    balance sheet items balance sheet items balance sheet items balance sheet items forforforfor    the EDF groupthe EDF groupthe EDF groupthe EDF group    consolidconsolidconsolidconsolidationationationation    and determiand determiand determiand determination ofnation ofnation ofnation of    
goodwillgoodwillgoodwillgoodwill    

3.1.4.1 Provisional initial balance sheet 
 
The fair value of Edison’s identifiable assets and liabilities is the Group’s current best estimate. It has been 
determined based on Edison’s most recent available business plan (the 2012-2019 plan) using standard 
valuation methods. 
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After determination of the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, Edison’s provisional 
initial balance sheet at 24 May 2012 (basis: 100%) is as follows. 
 
ASSETSASSETSASSETSASSETS    
(in millions of Euros) 

Historical valuesHistorical valuesHistorical valuesHistorical values        
    Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value 

adjustmentsadjustmentsadjustmentsadjustments    

    Provisional initial Provisional initial Provisional initial Provisional initial 
valuesvaluesvaluesvalues    

Goodwill 2,859  (2,859)  - 

Other intangible assets 1,436  1,669  3,105 

Property, plant and equipment 5,222  1,358  6,580 

Investments in associates 49  -  49 

Financial assets  815  -  815 

Deferred tax assets 111  -  111 

Inventories 324  -  324 

Trade receivables 3,157  -  3,157 

Current tax assets  24  -  24 

Other receivables 575  -  575 

Cash and cash equivalents 335  -  335 

Assets classified as held for sale 1  -  1 

Total assetsTotal assetsTotal assetsTotal assets    11114,4,4,4,908908908908        168168168168        11115,5,5,5,076076076076    

 
 

    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
(in millions of Euros) 

Historical values Historical values Historical values Historical values     
    Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value 

adjustmentsadjustmentsadjustmentsadjustments    

    Provisional initial Provisional initial Provisional initial Provisional initial 
valuesvaluesvaluesvalues    

Capital 5,292  -  5,292 

EDF net income and consolidated reserves 1,660  (1,280)  380 

Equity (EDF share)Equity (EDF share)Equity (EDF share)Equity (EDF share)    6,6,6,6,952952952952        (1,(1,(1,(1,280)280)280)280)        5555,,,,672672672672    

Equity (non-controlling interests)   150  328  478 

Total equityTotal equityTotal equityTotal equity    7,7,7,7,102102102102        (952)(952)(952)(952)        6666,,,,150150150150    

Provisions 922  126  1,048 

Financial liabilities 3,982  (39)  3,943 

Deferred tax liabilities 371  1,033  1,404 

Trade payables 1,928  -  1,928 

Current tax liabilities 39  -  39 

Other liabilities 564  -  564 

Total equity and liabilitiesTotal equity and liabilitiesTotal equity and liabilitiesTotal equity and liabilities    14,14,14,14,908908908908        168168168168        15,15,15,15,076076076076    

 
The main restatements resulting from fair value adjustments of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
are: 
 

• Cancellation of historical goodwill (€2,859 million) 
 

• Creation of an intangible asset representing the Edison brand (€945 million) 
The brand has been valued by using the relief from royalty method and “scoring” based on a market study 
designed to position Edison in relation to its main competitors on the Italian market. 
As the Edison brand is a very well-known brand in Italy and the Group intends to continue using it in the 
long term, its useful life has been considered indefinite. 
The fair value assigned to the Edison brand is sensitive to changes in the following main assumptions: 

o Royalty rates 
o Discount rates applied to future cash flows 

 

• Revaluation of hydropower concession assets (intangibles) (€1,165 million) 
The fair value of hydropower concessions was determined by the discounted future cash flows method, 
based on the most recent available Edison business plan (the 2012-2019 plan) and assuming systematic 
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renewal of current concessions for a 20-year duration from the renegotiation date, although on revised 
financial terms. 
Conservatism factors have been incorporated by applying a risk premium to the rate used to discount cash 
flows, and limiting the assumed renewal of concessions to a 20-year duration. Italian regulations on such 
matters are currently in preparation, and 20 years is expected to be the minimum duration for future 
concessions. 
This fair value is sensitive to changes in the following main assumptions: 

o Occurrence, duration and terms of concession renewals, 
o Electricity market prices in Italy, 
o Cash flow discount rates. 

Hydropower concession assets are depreciated over the assumed duration of the concession (26 years on 
average). 
 

• Revaluation of long-term gas supply contracts (€230 million) 
Long-term gas supply contracts have been revalued using the discounted future cash flows method, based 
on the most recent available Edison business plan (the 2012-2019 plan). 
This fair value is sensitive to changes in the following main assumptions: 

o Gas and electricity market prices in Italy, 
o Edison’s margin levels on contract renegotiations, ongoing and future, 
o Cash flow discount rates. 

Intangible assets related to long-term supply contracts are amortised on the basis of volumes and contract 
durations (from 8 to 23 years).  
 

• Other fair value adjustments  
Other adjustments chiefly concern electricity generation assets (particularly fossil-fired and wind power 
assets), hydrocarbon Production-Exploration assets, CO2 quotas, contingent liabilities and financial liabilities. 
In determining Edison’s initial balance sheet, Production-Exploration assets, which were included in 
intangible assets in Edison’s historical balance sheet in the amount of €1,027 million – mainly concerning 
Abu Qir in Egypt – have been reclassified as tangible assets. A fair value for hydrocarbon reserves is thus 
visible in the balance sheet. 
 

• Deferred taxes (€(1,033) million) 
Restatements of deferred taxes correspond solely to tax effects associated with fair value adjustments 
carried out for determination of the initial balance sheet. 
 
Fair value adjustments of TdE assets and liabilities (excluding Edison shares) amount to €5 million (net of 
taxes) and concern remeasurement of financial liabilities to fair value.  
 
3.1.4.2 Determination of provisional goodwill 
 
The provisional goodwill recognised on the operation is as follows: 
 

(in millions of Euros)     

Fair value of previously-held investments  1,709 

Acquisition price of the investment  784 

Fair value of non-controlling interests (1)  991 

Price adjustment clause / costs borne by Delmi (24) 

Purchase consideration transferred at 24 MayPurchase consideration transferred at 24 MayPurchase consideration transferred at 24 MayPurchase consideration transferred at 24 May    2012 2012 2012 2012     3,3,3,3,460460460460    

Fair value of Edison net assets acquired  5,672 

Fair value of TdE net assets acquired (excluding Edison shares) (2) (1,189) 

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumedFair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumedFair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumedFair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed    4,4,4,4,483483483483    

Provisional (negative) goodwillProvisional (negative) goodwillProvisional (negative) goodwillProvisional (negative) goodwill    (1,(1,(1,(1,023)023)023)023)    

 
(1) After application of the “full goodwill” method, based on the price of the mandatory tender offer to minority shareholders, i.e. 

€0.89 per Edison share.  
(2) Excluding Edison shares, TdE’s balance sheet mainly comprises financial liabilities. 
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In compliance with IFRS 3.36 and 3.34, the process for identifying items included in calculating the negative 
goodwill has been verified and validated to confirm the existence of this income, and the negative goodwill 
has been included as income in net income (EDF’s share) for first-half 2012. 

3.1.53.1.53.1.53.1.5 Sensitivity analysesSensitivity analysesSensitivity analysesSensitivity analyses    

The main assumptions to which assets and liabilities in the initial balance sheet are sensitive are: 
- Market prices for gas and electricity in Italy, 
- Gas and electricity sales volumes included in the Edison business plan (the 2012-2019 plan), 
- Royalty rates used to value the Edison brand, 
- Financial terms of long-term gas supply contracts, 
- Assumptions concerning renewal of hydropower concessions (duration, financial terms, etc), 
- Discount rates by country. 

 
In compliance with IFRS 3, the values of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are provisional, and 
the Group has 12 months to finalise allocation of the purchase price. 
 
The initial Edison balance sheet is particularly sensitive given the existence of several items specific to this 
particular operation:  

- Proximity of the acquisition date and the closing of the Group’s half-year financial statements, 
- Edison’s strategic plan, which was in preparation at the time of the takeover, 
- Renegotiations currently in process for long-term gas supply contracts. 

 
If the initial balance sheet is adjusted within the allocation deadline but after 30 June 2012, the fact that 
the goodwill is negative would lead to recognition of any impacts in the Group’s income statement in 
respect of the takeover of Edison. 
A change in the fair values used would thus have an equal impact on the EDF Group’s net income (a decline 
or increase in the value of the assets would lead respectively to a loss or gain). 

3.1.63.1.63.1.63.1.6 Impact Impact Impact Impact of the of the of the of the opopopopeeeeration ration ration ration on the Group’s net indon the Group’s net indon the Group’s net indon the Group’s net indebtedness at ebtedness at ebtedness at ebtedness at 30 June 201230 June 201230 June 201230 June 2012    

The takeover of Edison and TdE has the following impacts on consolidated net indebtedness  
at 30 June 2012. 
 

(in millions of Euros)  

Acquisition price for the shares of TdE 784 

Sale price for Edipower by Edison (684) 

Net paymenNet paymenNet paymenNet payments ts ts ts     100100100100    

Effects of changes in scope / Edison  2,217 

Effects of changes in scope / TdE  634 

Effects of changes in scope / sale of Edipower (515) 

Effects of fair value measurement of financial liabilities of TdE / Edison    (46) 

Effects of changes in scopeEffects of changes in scopeEffects of changes in scopeEffects of changes in scope    and fair value measurementand fair value measurementand fair value measurementand fair value measurement    2,2,2,2,290290290290    

Increase / (decrease) in net indebtednessIncrease / (decrease) in net indebtednessIncrease / (decrease) in net indebtednessIncrease / (decrease) in net indebtedness    2,2,2,2,390390390390    

 
The mandatory tender offer to minority shareholders could lead to a payout of €893 million maximum in 
the second half of 2012. At 30 June 2012 this amount is considered as an off-balance sheet commitment 
for the Group (note 25.1.2). 
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3.1.73.1.73.1.73.1.7 Effects of the takeover of Edison on the Group’s main income statement indicatEffects of the takeover of Edison on the Group’s main income statement indicatEffects of the takeover of Edison on the Group’s main income statement indicatEffects of the takeover of Edison on the Group’s main income statement indicators in ors in ors in ors in firstfirstfirstfirst----
half 2012half 2012half 2012half 2012    

If the takeover of Edison had taken place at 1 January 2012, the impacts on the Group’s main income 
statement indicators for the first half-year would have been as follows. 
 

(in millions of Euros) 
H1 2012 as H1 2012 as H1 2012 as H1 2012 as 
publishedpublishedpublishedpublished    

    H1 2012 H1 2012 H1 2012 H1 2012 
proforproforproforproforma ma ma ma (1)(1)(1)(1)    

ChangeChangeChangeChange    

Sales 36,222  38,716 +2,494  

EBITDA 9,075  9,186 +111  

Net income (EDF share) 2,768  2,736 (32)  

 
(1) Data for the first half of 2012 with full consolidation of Edison from 1 January 2012 (from 24 May 2012 in the published 

figures). 

4444 REGULATORREGULATORREGULATORREGULATORY CHANGES INY CHANGES INY CHANGES INY CHANGES IN    FFFFRANCERANCERANCERANCE    

4.14.14.14.1 ““““NOMENOMENOMENOME””””    LAWLAWLAWLAW    ––––    EUROPEUROPEUROPEUROPEAN EAN EAN EAN COMMISSIONCOMMISSIONCOMMISSIONCOMMISSION    DECISIONDECISIONDECISIONDECISION        

On 12 June 2012 the European Commission announced that subject to conditions, it approved the State 
aid contained in the regulated electricity tariffs in France. In 2007 the Commission had opened an 
investigation into the regulated tariffs for sales to business customers (the “yellow” and “green” tariffs and 
the TaRTAM transition tariff). Since then, France’s NOME law on the new electricity market organisation 
modified the French legislative and regulatory context by discontinuing the TaRTAM transition tariff, 
programming the end of the “yellow” and “green” tariffs for the end of 2015 and setting up a scheme for 
regulated access to nuclear power (named ARENH, for Accès Régulé à l’Electricité Nucléaire Historique) for 
all suppliers of customers located in France. 
Following an inquiry, the European Commission concluded that the business tariffs constituted State aid, 
but are nevertheless compatible with European law provided: 
-  the ARENH price remains at €42/MWh until the Commission gives approval of the methodology used to 
set the ARENH price, 
- there is a gradual move towards cost-based pricing every year from the summer of 2012, until the 
“yellow” and “green” tariffs cease to exist at the end of 2015. 
This decision marks the end of the European Commission’s investigation concerning State aid. 
 

5555 OTHER CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OFOTHER CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OFOTHER CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OFOTHER CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF    CONSOLIDATIONCONSOLIDATIONCONSOLIDATIONCONSOLIDATION    

5.15.15.15.1 POLANDPOLANDPOLANDPOLAND    

The purchase of EnBW’s investments in subsidiaries ERSA, Kogeneracja and EDF Polska was completed on 
16 February 2012 for the amount of €301 million. Following this transaction EDF now owns 97.3% of 
ERSA and 50% plus one share in Kogeneracja. Kogeneracja and Zielona Gora are again fully consolidated 
as of 16 February 2012, having been proportionally consolidated since 17 February 2011 after the sale of 
EnBW. 
 
The acquisition of minority interests in ERSA is treated as a transaction between shareholders in accordance 
with IAS 27 (amended), and as a result has an impact of €(124) million on equity in the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
In application of IFRS 3 (revised), a €(10) million loss on sale was also recorded in the first half of 2012, 
corresponding to the previous ownership share in Zielona Gora and Kogeneracja. The additional goodwill 
associated with this operation is below €1 million. 

     



 

Page 21212121 of 41414141 
 

5.25.25.25.2 PHOTOWATT / PV ALLIAPHOTOWATT / PV ALLIAPHOTOWATT / PV ALLIAPHOTOWATT / PV ALLIANCENCENCENCE    

EDF’s offer for the activities of Photowatt was accepted on 27 February 2012. Via its subsidiary EDF 
Energies Nouvelles Réparties (EDF ENR), the Group took possession of the assets of Photowatt and took 
control of PV Alliance on 1 March 2012. This takeover of business has no significant impact on the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2012. 

5.35.35.35.3 ENERESTENERESTENERESTENEREST    

On 1 April 2012 Electricité de Strasbourg acquired 100% of Enerest, the longstanding gas supplier to the 
economic region of Strasbourg. The acquisition price was €139 million. Following establishment of a 
provisional initial balance sheet, intangible assets (principally concerning customer relations and the “Gaz 
de Strasbourg” brand) were valued at €38 million before tax effects.  
The provisional goodwill on this operation recorded in the consolidated financial statements  
at 30 June 2012 amounts to €90 million. 
 

6666 SEGMENT REPORTINGSEGMENT REPORTINGSEGMENT REPORTINGSEGMENT REPORTING    

Segment reporting presentation complies with IFRS 8, “Operating segments”. 
Segment reporting is determined before inter-segment eliminations. Inter-segment transactions take place 
at market prices. 
 
In accordance with IFRS 8, the breakdown used by the EDF group corresponds to the operating segments 
as regularly reviewed by the Management Committee. The segments used by the Group are identical to 
those described in note 6.1 to the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2011. 
 

6.16.16.16.1 ATATATAT    30 JUNE 201230 JUNE 201230 JUNE 201230 JUNE 2012    

(in millions of Euros) 
FranceFranceFranceFrance    

United United United United 
KingdomKingdomKingdomKingdom    

ItalyItalyItalyItaly    
Other Other Other Other 

internationalinternationalinternationalinternational    
Other Other Other Other 

activitiesactivitiesactivitiesactivities    
EliminationsEliminationsEliminationsEliminations    TotalTotalTotalTotal    

External sales 20,706 4,821 3,607 4,009 3,079 - 36,222 

Inter-segment sales 268 - - 77 300 (645) - 

Total salesTotal salesTotal salesTotal sales    20,20,20,20,974974974974    4,4,4,4,821821821821    3,3,3,3,607607607607    4,4,4,4,086086086086    3,3,3,3,379379379379    (645)(645)(645)(645)    36,36,36,36,222222222222    

                                    

Operating profit before depreciation and Operating profit before depreciation and Operating profit before depreciation and Operating profit before depreciation and 
amortisationamortisationamortisationamortisation    

6,6,6,6,072072072072    1,1,1,1,075075075075    211211211211    552552552552    1,1,1,1,165165165165    ----    9,9,9,9,075075075075    

                                    

Operating profitOperating profitOperating profitOperating profit    4,4,4,4,093093093093    690690690690    (137)(137)(137)(137)    53535353    903903903903    ----    5,5,5,5,602602602602    

6.26.26.26.2 AT AT AT AT 30 30 30 30 JUNE JUNE JUNE JUNE 2012012012011111        

(in millions of Euros) 
FranceFranceFranceFrance    

United United United United 
KingdomKingdomKingdomKingdom    

ItalyItalyItalyItaly    
Other Other Other Other 

internationalinternationalinternationalinternational    
Other Other Other Other 

activitiesactivitiesactivitiesactivities    
ElElElEliminationsiminationsiminationsiminations    TotalTotalTotalTotal    

External sales 19,495 4,390 3,052 3,800 2,727 - 33,464

Inter-segment sales 249 - - 73 314 (636) -

Total salesTotal salesTotal salesTotal sales    19,74419,74419,74419,744    4,3904,3904,3904,390 3,0523,0523,0523,052 3,8733,8733,8733,873 3,0413,0413,0413,041 (636)(636)(636)(636)    33,46433,46433,46433,464

                
Operating profit before depreciation and Operating profit before depreciation and Operating profit before depreciation and Operating profit before depreciation and 
amortamortamortamortisatisatisatisationionionion    

5,735,735,735,733333    1,1861,1861,1861,186 218218218218 638638638638 909090900000 ----    8,6758,6758,6758,675

                

Operating profitOperating profitOperating profitOperating profit    3333,,,,565656565555    723723723723 (30)(30)(30)(30) 671671671671 434343437777 ----    5,3665,3665,3665,366
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7777 SALESSALESSALESSALES    

(in millions of Euros) 
    H1H1H1H1    2012012012012222    H1H1H1H1    2012012012011111    

Sales of energy and energy-related services  33,525 30,918

Other sales of goods and services  2,246 2,068

Trading  451 478

SalesSalesSalesSales        36,36,36,36,222222222222    33,46433,46433,46433,464

8888 OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSESOTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSESOTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSESOTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES    

Other operating income and expenses comprise the Contribution to the Public Electricity Service (CSPE) 
introduced by the French Law of 3 January 2003. This contribution is payable by end-users (both eligible 
and non-eligible) and collected by network operators or electricity suppliers, which then pay it to the State. 
In the financial statements, the CSPE system is reflected through recognition of income of €2,385 million in 
the first half of 2012 (€1,721 million in first-half 2011). 
In first-half 2012, other operating income and expenses also include: 
���� €72 million corresponding to reversals of negative fair value on British Energy commodity sales 

contracts recognised at the acquisition date of 5 January 2009 following their settlement (€201 million 
in the first half-year of 2011); 

���� gains on sales of real estate assets in France amounting to €187 million. 
 
In first-half 2011, other operating income and expenses also included a net expense of €(118) million 
relating to the TaRTAM transition tariff system: €(170) million of this amount resulted from the decision of 
4 July  2011 issued after re-estimation of the cost by the French energy regulator CRE (Commission de 
Régulation de l’Energie) based on information provided by the suppliers concerned. 

9999 IMPAIRMENTIMPAIRMENTIMPAIRMENTIMPAIRMENT    

9.19.19.19.1 AT AT AT AT 30 JUNE 201230 JUNE 201230 JUNE 201230 JUNE 2012    

Impairment amounting to €(294) million was recognised at 30 June 2012, including €(233) million in 
respect of CENG’s generation assets.  
 
In the United States, the substantial downturn in gas prices in first quarter 2012 led to a decline in forward 
electricity prices, providing an indication of loss of value in CENG’s generation assets. Consequently, the 
impairment test was updated, incorporating the new parameters and a lower discount rate of 6.7% (7.1% 
at 31 December 2011) related to the fall in risk-free dollar rates. A decrease of €233 million in the 
recoverable value of CENG’s assets was thus recorded. 

9.29.29.29.2 AT AT AT AT 30 30 30 30 JUNE JUNE JUNE JUNE 2011201120112011    

Impairment amounting to €(269) million was recognised at 30 June 2011, including €(174) million 
concerning the Dalkia group’s operations in Italy and Spain, and €(60) million in respect of Edison 
generation assets. 
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10101010 OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSESOTHER INCOME AND EXPENSESOTHER INCOME AND EXPENSESOTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES    

10.110.110.110.1 AT AT AT AT 30 JUNE 201230 JUNE 201230 JUNE 201230 JUNE 2012    

Other income and expenses for first-half 2012 include: 
���� the effects of the Group’s takeover of Edison during the period, amounting to €(51) million. Details of 

the impacts of this operation are presented in note 3.1; 
���� income of €177 million concerning ERDF, primarily resulting from reversal of a provision for renewal 

following a change in estimate for the useful life of high/low voltage transformers (extended from 30 
years to 40 years). 

10.210.210.210.2 AT AT AT AT 30 30 30 30 JUNE JUNE JUNE JUNE 2011201120112011    

Other income and expenses for first-half 2011 reflect the gain on the sale of EnBW, amounting  
to €327 million. 

11111111 FINANCIAL RESULTFINANCIAL RESULTFINANCIAL RESULTFINANCIAL RESULT    

The discount effect included in the financial result primarily concerns provisions for the back-end nuclear 
cycle, decommissioning and last cores, and provisions for long-term and post-employment employee 
benefits. 
 
Details of this expense are as follows: 

(in millions of Euros) 
H1H1H1H1    2012012012012222    H1H1H1H1    2020202011111111    

Provisions for post-employment and long-term employee benefits (691) (670) 

Provisions for back-end nuclear cycle, decommissioning and last cores (800)  (775) 

Other provisions and advances (71) (79) 

Discount effectDiscount effectDiscount effectDiscount effect    (1,(1,(1,(1,562)562)562)562)    (1,524)(1,524)(1,524)(1,524)    

12121212 INCOME TAXESINCOME TAXESINCOME TAXESINCOME TAXES    

Income taxes amount to €(1,235) million for the first half of 2012, corresponding to an effective tax rate of 
32,6 %  (compared to an expense of €(995) million corresponding to an effective tax rate of 28.0% for the 
first half of 2011). They are calculated by applying the forecast effective tax rate for 2012 to the pre-tax 
income for first-half 2012. 
 
The main cause of the rise in the effective tax rate for first half 2012 compared to first half 2011 is  
the 1.7 point increase in France’s tax rate adopted at the end of 2011, and the positive non-recurring effect 
of low taxation of the gain on sale of the Group’s investment in EnBW in first-half 2011, which had no 
equivalent in first-half 2012. 

     



 

Page 24242424 of 41414141 
 

13131313 GOODWILLGOODWILLGOODWILLGOODWILL    

Goodwill on consolidated entities comprises the following:  

(in millions of Euros) 
    

Net book value at 31 December 2011Net book value at 31 December 2011Net book value at 31 December 2011Net book value at 31 December 2011 11,11,11,11,648648648648    

Acquisitions  128 

Disposals - 

Impairment  (27) 

Translation adjustments 306 

Changes in scope of consolidation and other (1,400) 

Net book value at 30 June 2012Net book value at 30 June 2012Net book value at 30 June 2012Net book value at 30 June 2012    10,10,10,10,655655655655    

Gross value at 30 June 2012 11,939 

Accumulated impairment at 30 June 2012 (1,284) 

 
Acquisitions during the half-year include goodwill of €90 million recognised after Electricité de Strasbourg’s 
acquisition of Enerest. 
 
Changes in the scope of consolidation over the period include €(1,400) million resulting from derecognition 
of historical Edison goodwill after the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed was 
determined for the purposes of the acquisition of control on 24 May 2012. 

14141414 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTPROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTPROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTPROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT    

(in millions of Euros) 30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012201220122012    31/31/31/31/12/12/12/12/2011201120112011    

Property, plant and equipment 44,920 44,342

Property, plant and equipment in progress 1,274 1,159

Property, plant and equipment operated under French public electricity distribution Property, plant and equipment operated under French public electricity distribution Property, plant and equipment operated under French public electricity distribution Property, plant and equipment operated under French public electricity distribution 
concessionsconcessionsconcessionsconcessions 46,46,46,46,194194194194    45,50145,50145,50145,501

Property, plant and equipment 6,185 5,326

Property, plant and equipment in progress 934 696

PrPrPrProperty, plant and equipment operated under concessions for other activitiesoperty, plant and equipment operated under concessions for other activitiesoperty, plant and equipment operated under concessions for other activitiesoperty, plant and equipment operated under concessions for other activities    7,7,7,7,119119119119    6,0226,0226,0226,022

Property, plant and equipment 50,247 47,184

Property, plant and equipment in progress 15,360 12,951

Finance-leased property, plant and equipment 308 310

Property, pProperty, pProperty, pProperty, plant and equipment used in generation and other tangible assets owned by lant and equipment used in generation and other tangible assets owned by lant and equipment used in generation and other tangible assets owned by lant and equipment used in generation and other tangible assets owned by 
the Groupthe Groupthe Groupthe Group    

65,65,65,65,915915915915    60,44560,44560,44560,445

 
The increase in property, plant and equipment over the first half of 2012 primarily reflects the effects of the 
takeover of Edison. 
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The net value of property, plant and equipment, excluding construction in progress and finance-leased 
assets, breaks down as follows: 

 (in millions of Euros) 

Property, plant and equipment Property, plant and equipment Property, plant and equipment Property, plant and equipment 
operated under French public operated under French public operated under French public operated under French public 

electricity distribution electricity distribution electricity distribution electricity distribution 
concessionsconcessionsconcessionsconcessions    (1)(1)(1)(1)    

Property, plant and Property, plant and Property, plant and Property, plant and equipment equipment equipment equipment 
operated under concessions operated under concessions operated under concessions operated under concessions 

for other activitiesfor other activitiesfor other activitiesfor other activities    

Property, plant and Property, plant and Property, plant and Property, plant and 
equipment used in equipment used in equipment used in equipment used in 
generation and other generation and other generation and other generation and other 

tangible assets owned by tangible assets owned by tangible assets owned by tangible assets owned by 
the Groupthe Groupthe Groupthe Group    

Gross values at Gross values at Gross values at Gross values at 30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    78,78,78,78,989989989989    12,12,12,12,580580580580    107,107,107,107,697697697697    

Depreciation and impairment at 30/6/2012 (34,069) (6,395) (57,450) 

Net values at Net values at Net values at Net values at 30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012 44,44,44,44,920920920920    6,6,6,6,185185185185    50,50,50,50,247247247247    

NetNetNetNet    values at values at values at values at 31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    44,34244,34244,34244,342    5,3265,3265,3265,326    47,18447,18447,18447,184    

 
(1) Network assets account for most of these amounts: €73,590 million gross value and €42,832 million net value at 30 June 2012 

(€72,345 million gross value and €42,279 million net value at 31 December 2011). 
 

The net value of property, plant and equipment used in generation and other tangible assets owned by the 
Group breaks down as follows: 

 (in millions of Euros) 

Land and Land and Land and Land and 
buildingsbuildingsbuildingsbuildings        

Nuclear power Nuclear power Nuclear power Nuclear power 
plantsplantsplantsplants    

FossilFossilFossilFossil----fired and fired and fired and fired and 
hydropower hydropower hydropower hydropower 

plantsplantsplantsplants    
NetworksNetworksNetworksNetworks        

OtherOtherOtherOther    installations, installations, installations, installations, 
plantplantplantplant, , , , machinery andmachinery andmachinery andmachinery and    
equipment & otherequipment & otherequipment & otherequipment & other    

TotalTotalTotalTotal    

Net values at Net values at Net values at Net values at 30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012 5,5,5,5,510510510510    27,27,27,27,016016016016    9,9,9,9,045045045045    389389389389    8,8,8,8,287287287287    50,50,50,50,247247247247    

NetNetNetNet    values at values at values at values at 31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    5,3065,3065,3065,306    27,25827,25827,25827,258    6,1706,1706,1706,170    391391391391    8,0598,0598,0598,059    47,18447,18447,18447,184    

 
Impairment of property, plant and equipment amounting to €(254) million is recognised for the first half of 
2012, including €(233) million concerning CENG’s nuclear generation facilities (see note 9.1). 

15151515 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATESINVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATESINVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATESINVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES    

Investments in associates are as follows: 
            30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012201220122012    31/31/31/31/12/12/12/12/2011201120112011    

(in millions of Euros) 

Principal Principal Principal Principal 
activityactivityactivityactivity    

(1)(1)(1)(1)    
Ownership %Ownership %Ownership %Ownership %    

Share of net Share of net Share of net Share of net 
equityequityequityequity    

Share of net Share of net Share of net Share of net 
incomeincomeincomeincome    

Share of net Share of net Share of net Share of net 
equityequityequityequity    

Share of net Share of net Share of net Share of net 
incomeincomeincomeincome    

RTE Réseau de Transport d’Electricité  T 100.00 4,741 290 4,620 272 

ALPIQ  G 25.00  1,420 15 1,396 (276) 

Taishan G 30.00 706 - 688 - 

Dalkia Holding O 34.00 431 8 443 23 

NTPC G 40.00 140 19 125 23 

Other investments in associates          316 11 272 9 

TotalTotalTotalTotal            7,7,7,7,754754754754    343343343343    7,5447,5447,5447,544    51515151    

(1) G= generation, D= distribution, T= transmission, O= other. 
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15.115.115.115.1 RTE RTE RTE RTE RRRRESEAU DE ESEAU DE ESEAU DE ESEAU DE TRANSPOTRANSPOTRANSPOTRANSPORTRTRTRT    D’ELECTRICITE (RTE)D’ELECTRICITE (RTE)D’ELECTRICITE (RTE)D’ELECTRICITE (RTE)        

15.1.115.1.115.1.115.1.1 RTE RTE RTE RTE ––––    FINANCIAL INDICATORSFINANCIAL INDICATORSFINANCIAL INDICATORSFINANCIAL INDICATORS    

The key financial indicators for RTE for first-half 2012 are as follows: 

 (in millions of Euros)  

Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation 922 

Net income 290 

Equity at 30 June 2012 4,741 

Balance sheet total at 30 June 2012 14,762 

Net indebtedness at 30 June 2012 6,445 

 

15.1.215.1.215.1.215.1.2 TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE EDF GROUP AND TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE EDF GROUP AND TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE EDF GROUP AND TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE EDF GROUP AND RTE  RTE  RTE  RTE      

At 30 June 2012 the main transactions between the EDF group and RTE were as follows. 

 
SalesSalesSalesSales    

 
ERDF uses RTE’s high-voltage and very high-voltage networks to convey energy from its point of generation 
to the distribution networks. This service generated €1,669  million in sales revenues for RTE from ERDF 
over the first half of 2012. 
In executing its responsibility to ensure balance in the electricity system, during first-half 2012 RTE also 
undertook: 
� energy purchases and sales with EDF, amounting to €107 million and €106 million respectively; 
� system service purchases from EDF amounting to €146 million. 
 
Other transactionsOther transactionsOther transactionsOther transactions    
 
The EDF group contributes to financing of RTE through loans amounting to a total of €1,203 million at 30 
June 2012 (€1,400 million at 31 December 2011). RTE recorded a total of €36 million in interest expenses 
on this loan in first-half 2012. 
RTE is also included in the EDF group tax consolidation, under a tax consolidation agreement between the 
two companies. 

16161616 CURRENT AND NONCURRENT AND NONCURRENT AND NONCURRENT AND NON----CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETSCURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETSCURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETSCURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS    

16.116.116.116.1 BREAKDOWN BETWEEN CUBREAKDOWN BETWEEN CUBREAKDOWN BETWEEN CUBREAKDOWN BETWEEN CURRENT AND NONRRENT AND NONRRENT AND NONRRENT AND NON----CURRENT FINANCIAL ASCURRENT FINANCIAL ASCURRENT FINANCIAL ASCURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETSSETSSETSSETS    

Current and non-current financial assets break down as follows: 
 

  30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012012012012222    31/31/31/31/12/12/12/12/2020202011111111    

(in millions of Euros) 
CurrentCurrentCurrentCurrent    NonNonNonNon----currentcurrentcurrentcurrent    TotalTotalTotalTotal    CurrentCurrentCurrentCurrent    NonNonNonNon----currentcurrentcurrentcurrent    TotalTotalTotalTotal    

Financial assets carried at fair value with changes 
in fair value included in income 

4,933 12 4,4,4,4,945945945945    4,482 12 4,4944,4944,4944,494    

Available-for-sale financial assets 14,004 15,239 29,29,29,29,243243243243    10,413 13,915 24,32824,32824,32824,328    

Held-to-maturity investments 1 17 18 18 18 18     3 16 19191919    

Positive fair value of hedging derivatives 1,013 1,773 2,2,2,2,786786786786    914 1,862 2,7762,7762,7762,776    

Loans and financial receivables 874 8,272 9,9,9,9,146146146146    1,168 8,455 9,6239,6239,6239,623    

Current and nonCurrent and nonCurrent and nonCurrent and non----curcurcurcurrent financial assetsrent financial assetsrent financial assetsrent financial assets(1)(1)(1)(1)    20,20,20,20,825825825825    25,25,25,25,313313313313    46,46,46,46,138138138138    16,98016,98016,98016,980    24,26024,26024,26024,260    41,24041,24041,24041,240    

(1) Net of impairment of €(1,138) million at 30 June 2012 (€(1,141) million at 31 December 2011). 
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16.216.216.216.2 DETAILDETAILDETAILDETAILSSSS    OF FINANCIAL ASSETSOF FINANCIAL ASSETSOF FINANCIAL ASSETSOF FINANCIAL ASSETS    

16.2.116.2.116.2.116.2.1 FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE WITH CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE INCLUDED IN FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE WITH CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE INCLUDED IN FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE WITH CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE INCLUDED IN FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE WITH CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE INCLUDED IN 
INCOMEINCOMEINCOMEINCOME    

 
(in millions of Euros) 30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012201220122012    31/31/31/31/12/12/12/12/2011201120112011    

Derivatives - positive fair value  4,929 4,478 

Fair value of derivatives held for trading  4 4 

Financial assets carried at fair value optionally in income 12 12 

Financial assets carried at fair value with changes in fair value included in incomeFinancial assets carried at fair value with changes in fair value included in incomeFinancial assets carried at fair value with changes in fair value included in incomeFinancial assets carried at fair value with changes in fair value included in income    4,4,4,4,945945945945    4,4944,4944,4944,494    

 
16.2.216.2.216.2.216.2.2 AVAILABLEAVAILABLEAVAILABLEAVAILABLE----FORFORFORFOR----SALE FINANCIAL ASSETSSALE FINANCIAL ASSETSSALE FINANCIAL ASSETSSALE FINANCIAL ASSETS    

 

 30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    

(in millions of Euros) 
EquitiesEquitiesEquitiesEquities    (1)(1)(1)(1)    

Debt Debt Debt Debt     
securitiessecuritiessecuritiessecurities    TotalTotalTotalTotal    

Equities Equities Equities Equities (1)(1)(1)(1)    
Debt Debt Debt Debt     

securitiessecuritiessecuritiessecurities    
TotalTotalTotalTotal    

EDF dedicated assets 6,688 7,407 14,14,14,14,095095095095    5,801 7,510 13,31113,31113,31113,311    

Liquid assets 2,815 10,247 13,13,13,13,062062062062    2,782 6,242 9,0249,0249,0249,024    

Other  2,015 71 2,2,2,2,086086086086    1,918 75 1,9931,9931,9931,993    

AvailableAvailableAvailableAvailable----forforforfor----sale financial assetssale financial assetssale financial assetssale financial assets    11,11,11,11,518518518518    17,17,17,17,725725725725    29,29,29,29,243243243243    10,50110,50110,50110,501    13,82713,82713,82713,827    24,32824,32824,32824,328    

(1) Equities or investment funds. 

 
16.2.2.116.2.2.116.2.2.116.2.2.1 Liquid assetsLiquid assetsLiquid assetsLiquid assets    

 
EDF’s monetary investment funds included in liquid assets amount to €2,606 million at 30 June 2012 
(€2,187 million at 31 December 2011).  
    

16.2.2.216.2.2.216.2.2.216.2.2.2 Other securitiesOther securitiesOther securitiesOther securities    
 
At 30 June 2012, other securities mainly include: 
� at CENG, €609 million of available-for-sale financial assets related to decommissioning trust funds 

(reserved for financing of plant decommissioning) ; 
� at EDF Inc., shares in Exelon (€385 million) (CEG shares became Exelon shares after the merger of the 

two companies, finalised in March 2012); 
� at EDF, shares in Areva (€88 million) and Veolia Environnement (€220 million).  

16.316.316.316.3 LOANS AND LOANS AND LOANS AND LOANS AND FINANCIAL RECEIVABLEFINANCIAL RECEIVABLEFINANCIAL RECEIVABLEFINANCIAL RECEIVABLESSSS    

Loans and financial receivables include amounts representing reimbursements receivable from the Nuclear 
Liabilities Fund (NLF) and the British government for coverage of long-term nuclear obligations, totalling 
€6,900 million at 30 June 2012 (€7,209 million at 31 December 2011). 
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17171717 TRADE RECEIVABLESTRADE RECEIVABLESTRADE RECEIVABLESTRADE RECEIVABLES    

Details of net trade receivables are as follows:  

(in millions of Euros) 
30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    

Trade receivables, gross value – excluding EDF Trading 19,423 17,962

Trade receivables, gross value – EDF Trading 2,249 3,6133

Impairment (883) (667)

Trade receivables Trade receivables Trade receivables Trade receivables ––––    net valuenet valuenet valuenet value    20,20,20,20,789789789789    20,90820,90820,90820,908

 
Most trade receivables mature within one year. 
 
Securitisation of trade receivables is undertaken on a recurrent basis, principally by Edison, and amounts to 
€2,482 million at 30 June 2012 (€2,572 million (EDF’s share) at 31 December 2011). As securitisation is 
without recourse, the corresponding receivables are not carried in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet. 

18181818 OTHER RECEIVABLESOTHER RECEIVABLESOTHER RECEIVABLESOTHER RECEIVABLES    

“Other receivables” comprise EDF’s CSPE receivable, amounting to €4,508 million at 30 June 2012 
(€3,821 million at 31 December 2011). This corresponds to the shortfall in CSPE compensation, which is 
recorded at nominal value and does not bear interest. This receivable is currently expected to be recovered 
in 2016. It is calculated on the assumption that public service electricity charges will progress steadily until 
2020, and that the contribution rate set will be progressively raised as stipulated by law.  
 
They also include various amounts receivable from the French State and local authorities (including 
€1,362 million of VAT receivables at 30 June 2012 for EDF). 

19191919 HELDHELDHELDHELD----FORFORFORFOR----SALE ASSETS AND LIABILITIESSALE ASSETS AND LIABILITIESSALE ASSETS AND LIABILITIESSALE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES    

At 31 December 2011, assets and liabilities held for sale corresponded to Edison’s investment in Edipower, 
which was sold on 24 May 2012 (see note 3.1). 

20202020 EQUITYEQUITYEQUITYEQUITY        

20.120.120.120.1 SHARE CAPITALSHARE CAPITALSHARE CAPITALSHARE CAPITAL    

EDF’s share capital amounts to €924,433,331 comprising 1,848,866,662 fully subscribed and paid-up 
shares with nominal value of €0.5 each (unchanged from 31 December 2011). 

20.220.220.220.2 TREASURY SHARESTREASURY SHARESTREASURY SHARESTREASURY SHARES    

As part of the share repurchase program executed under a liquidity contract as required by French market 
regulator AMF (Autorité des Marchés Financiers), 1,419,109 shares were purchased during the first half of 
2012 for a total of €24 million, and 1,324,109 shares were sold for a total of €23 million. 
At 30 June 2012, the total value of treasury shares deducted from consolidated equity is €(23) million. 
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20.320.320.320.3 DIVIDENDDIVIDENDDIVIDENDDIVIDENDSSSS    

The General Shareholders’ meeting of 24 May 2012 decided to distribute a dividend of €1.15 per share in 
circulation in respect of 2011. Interim dividends of €0.57 per share had been paid out on 16 December 
2011, and the balance of €0.58 per share amounting to a total of €1,072 million was paid out on 6 June 
2012. 

20.420.420.420.4 CHANGES IN THE FAIR CHANGES IN THE FAIR CHANGES IN THE FAIR CHANGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF FINANCVALUE OF FINANCVALUE OF FINANCVALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSIAL INSTRUMENTSIAL INSTRUMENTSIAL INSTRUMENTS    

20.4.120.4.120.4.120.4.1 AVAILABLEAVAILABLEAVAILABLEAVAILABLE----FORFORFORFOR----SALE FINANCIAL ASSETSSALE FINANCIAL ASSETSSALE FINANCIAL ASSETSSALE FINANCIAL ASSETS    

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets were recorded in equity (EDF share) over the 
period as follows: 
        30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012201220122012    30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2011201120112011    

(in millions of Euros) 

Gross changes in Gross changes in Gross changes in Gross changes in 
fair value fair value fair value fair value 

rrrrecorded in equityecorded in equityecorded in equityecorded in equity 
(1)(1)(1)(1)    

Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes 
in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value 
transferred to transferred to transferred to transferred to 
incomeincomeincomeincome (2)(2)(2)(2)    

    

Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes 
in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value 
recorded in recorded in recorded in recorded in 
equityequityequityequity (1)(1)(1)(1)    

Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes 
in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value 
transferred to transferred to transferred to transferred to 
incomeincomeincomeincome (2)(2)(2)(2)    

    

EDF dedicated assets 598 98     (145) 25     

Liquid assets 47 17     25 22     

Other    (85) 68     (52) 147     

AvailableAvailableAvailableAvailable----forforforfor----sale financial assetssale financial assetssale financial assetssale financial assets    560560560560    183183183183        (172)(172)(172)(172)    194 194 194 194     

(1) + / ( ) : increase / (decrease) in equity (EDF share) 

(2) + / ( ) : increase / (decrease) in income 

 
In first-half 2012, gross changes in fair value principally concern: 

- EDF (€487 million, including €500 million for dedicated assets); 
- EDF Inc (€(25) million for shares in Exelon); 
- CENG (€31 million for the Decommissioning Trust Fund). 

Gross changes in fair value transferred to income in first-half 2012 include income of €66 million on 
conversion of CEG shares into Exelon shares as part of the merger between the two companies, finalised on 
12 March 2012.  
  
In first-half 2011, gross changes in fair value principally concerned: 

- EDF (€(306) million, including €(170) million for dedicated assets); 
- EDF Inc (€69 million for CEG shares); 
- CENG (€17 million for the Decommissioning Trust Fund). 

 
20.4.220.4.220.4.220.4.2 HEDGING INSTRUMENTSHEDGING INSTRUMENTSHEDGING INSTRUMENTSHEDGING INSTRUMENTS    

 
Changes during the period in the fair value of hedging instruments included in equity (EDF share) are 
detailed below:  

        30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012201220122012    30/30/30/30/6/20116/20116/20116/2011    

 
 
 
(in millions of Euros) 

Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes 
in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value 
recorded in recorded in recorded in recorded in 
equityequityequityequity (1)(1)(1)(1)    

Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes 
in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value 
transferred to transferred to transferred to transferred to 
income income income income ----    

RecyclingRecyclingRecyclingRecycling
 (2)(2)(2)(2)    

Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes 
in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value 
transferred to transferred to transferred to transferred to 
income income income income ––––

IneffectivenessIneffectivenessIneffectivenessIneffectiveness    

    
Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes 
in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value 
rrrrecorded in ecorded in ecorded in ecorded in 
equityequityequityequity (1)(1)(1)(1)    

Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes 
in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value 
transferred to transferred to transferred to transferred to 
income income income income ----    

RecyclingRecyclingRecyclingRecycling
 (2)(2)(2)(2)    

Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes Gross changes 
in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value 
transferred to transferred to transferred to transferred to 
income income income income ----

IneffectivenessIneffectivenessIneffectivenessIneffectiveness    

Interest rate hedging  (24) - (1)  (21) - - 

Exchange rate hedging  21 53 9  (375) (199) 3 

Net foreign investment hedging (729) - -  740 - - 

Commodity hedging  (417) (294) -  (214) (109) - 

Hedging instrumentsHedging instrumentsHedging instrumentsHedging instruments    (1,(1,(1,(1,149)149)149)149)    (241)(241)(241)(241)    8888        130130130130    (308)(308)(308)(308)    3333    

(1) + / ( ): increase / (decrease) in equity (EDF share) 
(2) + / ( ) : increase / (decrease) in income 
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21212121 PROVISIONS PROVISIONS PROVISIONS PROVISIONS     

21.121.121.121.1 BREAKDOBREAKDOBREAKDOBREAKDOWN BETWEEN CURRENT AWN BETWEEN CURRENT AWN BETWEEN CURRENT AWN BETWEEN CURRENT AND NONND NONND NONND NON----CURRENT PROVISIONSCURRENT PROVISIONSCURRENT PROVISIONSCURRENT PROVISIONS    

The breakdown between current and non-current provisions is as follows:  

            30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012            31/31/31/31/12/12/12/12/012012012012    

(in millions of Euros) NotesNotesNotesNotes    CurrentCurrentCurrentCurrent    NonNonNonNon----currentcurrentcurrentcurrent    TotalTotalTotalTotal        CurrentCurrentCurrentCurrent    NonNonNonNon----currentcurrentcurrentcurrent    TotalTotalTotalTotal    

Provisions for back-end nuclear cycle 21.2 1,053 17,746 18,18,18,18,799799799799      1,302 17,528 18,83018,83018,83018,830    

Provisions for decommissioning and last cores 21.2 237 19,519 19,19,19,19,756756756756      173 19,670 19,84319,84319,84319,843    

Provisions related to nuclear generationProvisions related to nuclear generationProvisions related to nuclear generationProvisions related to nuclear generation    21.221.221.221.2    1,1,1,1,290290290290    37,37,37,37,265265265265    38,38,38,38,555555555555        1,4751,4751,4751,475    37,19837,19837,19837,198    38,67338,67338,67338,673    

Provisions for decomProvisions for decomProvisions for decomProvisions for decommissioning of nonmissioning of nonmissioning of nonmissioning of non----nuclear nuclear nuclear nuclear 
facilitiesfacilitiesfacilitiesfacilities    

    45454545    1,1,1,1,024024024024    1,1,1,1,069069069069        41414141    809809809809    850850850850    

Provisions for employee benefitsProvisions for employee benefitsProvisions for employee benefitsProvisions for employee benefits    21.421.421.421.4    974974974974    16,16,16,16,287287287287    17,17,17,17,261261261261            940940940940    14,61114,61114,61114,611    15,55115,55115,55115,551    

Other provisions Other provisions Other provisions Other provisions     21.521.521.521.5    1,1,1,1,361361361361    1,1,1,1,868868868868    3,3,3,3,229229229229            1,6061,6061,6061,606    1,3381,3381,3381,338    2,9442,9442,9442,944    

Total provisionsTotal provisionsTotal provisionsTotal provisions    3,3,3,3,670670670670    56,56,56,56,444444444444    60,60,60,60,114114114114      4,0624,0624,0624,062    53,9553,9553,9553,956666    58,01858,01858,01858,018    

 

21.221.221.221.2 PROVISIONS RELATED TPROVISIONS RELATED TPROVISIONS RELATED TPROVISIONS RELATED TO NUCLEAR GENERATIONO NUCLEAR GENERATIONO NUCLEAR GENERATIONO NUCLEAR GENERATION    ––––    BACKBACKBACKBACK----END NUCLEAR END NUCLEAR END NUCLEAR END NUCLEAR 
CYCLE, PLANT DECOMMICYCLE, PLANT DECOMMICYCLE, PLANT DECOMMICYCLE, PLANT DECOMMISSIONING AND LAST COSSIONING AND LAST COSSIONING AND LAST COSSIONING AND LAST CORESRESRESRES    

In the first half of 2012, the movement in provisions for back-end nuclear cycle, provisions for 
decommissioning and provisions for last cores breaks down as follows: 
 

 
Other changes in provisions related to nuclear generation reflect the change in amounts reimbursable by 
the NLF and the British government for coverage of EDF Energy’s long-term nuclear obligations, totalling 
€(309) million, including €(608) million resulting from the 7-year extension to the nuclear plants’ operating 
lifetime in first-half 2012. 
 
  

 
 
 
 
(in millions of Euros) 

31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    IncreasesIncreasesIncreasesIncreases    DecreasesDecreasesDecreasesDecreases    Other Other Other Other 
movementsmovementsmovementsmovements    

30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    

                UtilisationsUtilisationsUtilisationsUtilisations        ReversalsReversalsReversalsReversals    

    

        

Provisions for spent nuclear fuel 
management 

11,530 422 (323) (92) (63) 11,47411,47411,47411,474    

Provisions for long-term radioactive 
waste management 

7,300 177 (144) (8) - 7,3257,3257,3257,325    

Provisions for backProvisions for backProvisions for backProvisions for back----end nuclear end nuclear end nuclear end nuclear 
cyclecyclecyclecycle    

18,18,18,18,830830830830    599599599599    (467)(467)(467)(467)    (100)(100)(100)(100)    (63)(63)(63)(63)    18,79918,79918,79918,799    

                   

Provisions for nuclear plant 
decommissioning 

16,430 311 (100) - (290) 16,35116,35116,35116,351    

Provisions for last cores 
3,413 82 - - (90) 3,4053,4053,4053,405    

Provisions for decommissioning Provisions for decommissioning Provisions for decommissioning Provisions for decommissioning 
and last coresand last coresand last coresand last cores 19,19,19,19,843843843843    393393393393    (100)(100)(100)(100)    ----    (380)(380)(380)(380)    19,75619,75619,75619,756    

Provisions related to nuclear Provisions related to nuclear Provisions related to nuclear Provisions related to nuclear 
generationgenerationgenerationgeneration 38,38,38,38,673673673673    992992992992    (567)(567)(567)(567)    (100)(100)(100)(100)    (443)(443)(443)(443)    38,55538,55538,55538,555    
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The breakdown of provisions by company is shown below: 

(in millions of Euros) EDFEDFEDFEDF    EDF EnergyEDF EnergyEDF EnergyEDF Energy    CENGCENGCENGCENG    Other entitiesOther entitiesOther entitiesOther entities    TotalTotalTotalTotal    

Provisions for spent nuclear fuel management 9,081 2,391 - 2 11,474 

Provisions for long-term radioactive waste 
management 

6,744 581 - - 7,325 

Provisions for backProvisions for backProvisions for backProvisions for back----end nuclear cycle at 30 June end nuclear cycle at 30 June end nuclear cycle at 30 June end nuclear cycle at 30 June 
2012201220122012    

15,15,15,15,825825825825    2,2,2,2,972972972972    ----    2222    18,18,18,18,799799799799    

Provisions for backProvisions for backProvisions for backProvisions for back----end nuclear cycle at end nuclear cycle at end nuclear cycle at end nuclear cycle at 31313131    DecDecDecDecemberemberemberember
2011201120112011    

15,15,15,15,865865865865    2,2,2,2,962962962962    ----    3333    18,18,18,18,830830830830    

      
Provisions for nuclear plant decommissioning 11,571 4,115 505 160 16,351 

Provisions for last cores 2,071 1,285 49 - 3,405 

Provisions for decommissioning and last cores at Provisions for decommissioning and last cores at Provisions for decommissioning and last cores at Provisions for decommissioning and last cores at 30 30 30 30 
June 2012June 2012June 2012June 2012    

13,13,13,13,642642642642    5,5,5,5,400400400400    554554554554    160160160160    19,19,19,19,756756756756    

Provisions for decommissioning and last cores Provisions for decommissioning and last cores Provisions for decommissioning and last cores Provisions for decommissioning and last cores at 31at 31at 31at 31    
DecDecDecDecemberemberemberember    2011201120112011    

13,13,13,13,378378378378    5,5,5,5,791791791791    519519519519    155155155155    19,19,19,19,843843843843    

 
The decline in EDF Energy’s provisions for decommissioning and last cores over first-half 2012 results from 
the 7-year extension to its nuclear plants’ operating lifetime (€(608) million for decommissioning and €(146) 
million for last cores). 

21.321.321.321.3 NUCLEAR NUCLEAR NUCLEAR NUCLEAR PROVISIONS PROVISIONS PROVISIONS PROVISIONS ININININ    FRANCEFRANCEFRANCEFRANCE    

The measurement of provisions for the back-end of the nuclear cycle, nuclear plant decommissioning and 
last cores is sensitive to assumptions concerning costs, inflation rate, long-term discount rate, and 
disbursement schedules. A revised estimate is therefore established at each closing date to ensure that the 
amounts accrued correspond to the best estimate of the costs eventually to be borne by the Group.  
For permanently shut-down nuclear power plants (UNGG power plants, Creys-Malville, Brennilis and Chooz 
A), the provision is based on contractor quotes (costs and schedules) last updated in 2008. Re-examination 
of these quotes should be finalised during the second half of 2012. 
 
The discount rate and calculation method used for provisions are identical to those used at 31 December 
2011. The regulatory ceiling and factors concerning the sensitivity of provisions to assumptions are also 
unchanged. 
 
The corresponding expenses are measured under the economic conditions at 30 June 2012 and spread over 
a forecast disbursement schedule. A provision is booked equivalent to the discounted value (EDF applies a 
nominal discount rate of 5% in calculating its provisions, together with assumed inflation of 2%, resulting 
in an effective rate of close to 3%). 

        30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012201220122012    31/31/31/31/12/12/12/12/2011201120112011    

(in millions of Euros) 

Costs based on Costs based on Costs based on Costs based on 
economic conditionseconomic conditionseconomic conditionseconomic conditions    at at at at 

end of periodend of periodend of periodend of period    

Amounts in Amounts in Amounts in Amounts in 
provisions at provisions at provisions at provisions at 
present valuepresent valuepresent valuepresent value    

Costs basedCosts basedCosts basedCosts based    on on on on 
economic conditionseconomic conditionseconomic conditionseconomic conditions    at at at at 

end of periodend of periodend of periodend of period    

Amounts in Amounts in Amounts in Amounts in 
provisions at provisions at provisions at provisions at 
present valuepresent valuepresent valuepresent value    

Spent fuel management 14,891 9,081 14,844 9,143 

Long-term radioactive waste management 24,006 6,744 23,801 6,722 

BackBackBackBack----end nuclear cycle expensesend nuclear cycle expensesend nuclear cycle expensesend nuclear cycle expenses 38,38,38,38,897897897897    15,15,15,15,825825825825    38,38,38,38,645645645645    15,15,15,15,865865865865    

     

Decommissioning provisions for nuclear power 
plants 

21,244 11,571 21,108 11,366 

Provisions for last cores 3,941 2,071 3,888 2,012 

Provision for decommissioning and last coresProvision for decommissioning and last coresProvision for decommissioning and last coresProvision for decommissioning and last cores 25,25,25,25,185185185185    13,13,13,13,642642642642    24,24,24,24,996996996996    13,13,13,13,378378378378    
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21.421.421.421.4 EMPLOYEE BENEFITSEMPLOYEE BENEFITSEMPLOYEE BENEFITSEMPLOYEE BENEFITS    

21.4.121.4.121.4.121.4.1 EDF EDF EDF EDF groupgroupgroupgroup    

(in millions of Euros) 
30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012201220122012    31/31/31/31/12/12/12/12/2011201120112011    

Provision for employee benefits  - current portion 974 940

Provision for employee benefits  - non-current portion 16,287 14,611

Provision for employee benefitsProvision for employee benefitsProvision for employee benefitsProvision for employee benefits    17,17,17,17,261261261261    15,55115,55115,55115,551

 
21.4.1.1 Breakdown of the change in the provision 

(in millions of Euros) 

Obligations Obligations Obligations Obligations     Fund assetsFund assetsFund assetsFund assets    
Obligations Obligations Obligations Obligations     

net of net of net of net of     
fund assetsfund assetsfund assetsfund assets    

UnrecognUnrecognUnrecognUnrecognisisisised ed ed ed     
past service past service past service past service     

cost cost cost cost     

Provision Provision Provision Provision     
in the balance in the balance in the balance in the balance 

sheetsheetsheetsheet    

Balance at Balance at Balance at Balance at 31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    28,28,28,28,267267267267    (12,(12,(12,(12,594)594)594)594)    15,15,15,15,673673673673    (122)(122)(122)(122)    15,15,15,15,551551551551    

Net expense for first-half 2012 1,157 (316) 841 7 848 

Change in actuarial gains and losses 1,841 (306) 1,535 - 1,535 

Employer’s contributions to funds - (179) (179) - (179) 

Employees’ contributions to funds  10 (10) - - - 

Benefits paid  (682) 115 (567) - (567) 

Unvested past service cost  - -  - - - 

Translation adjustment 233 (186) 47 - 47 

Changes in scope of consolidation 34 - 34 - 34 

Other movements  18 (27) (9) 1 (8) 

Balance at Balance at Balance at Balance at 30/30/30/30/6/126/126/126/12    30,30,30,30,878878878878    (13,(13,(13,(13,503)503)503)503)    17,17,17,17,375375375375    (114)(114)(114)(114)    17,17,17,17,261261261261    

 
21.4.1.2 Post-employment and long-term employee benefit expenses 

(in millions of Euros) 

30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012 2012 2012 2012     

Current service cost (371) 

Interest expense (discount effect ) (691) 

Expected return on fund assets 316 

Past service cost  (7) 

Change in actuarial gains and losses – long-term benefits (96) 

Effect of plan curtailment or settlement 1 

PoPoPoPostststst----employment and other longemployment and other longemployment and other longemployment and other long----term employee benefit expensesterm employee benefit expensesterm employee benefit expensesterm employee benefit expenses    (848)(848)(848)(848)    

including:   

Operating expense (473) 

Financial expense 
    

(375) 
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21.4.1.3 Provision by operating segment 

(in millions of Euros) 

France France France France     
United United United United 
KingdomKingdomKingdomKingdom    

ItalyItalyItalyItaly    
Other Other Other Other 

iiiinternationalnternationalnternationalnternational    
Other Other Other Other 

aaaactivitiesctivitiesctivitiesctivities    
TTTTotalotalotalotal    

Obligations at Obligations at Obligations at Obligations at 31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    21,21,21,21,454454454454    6,6,6,6,027027027027    37373737    462462462462    287287287287    28,28,28,28,267267267267    

Net expense for first-half 2012 884 244 2 17 10 1,157 

Change in actuarial gains and losses  1,482 316 1 - 42 1,841 

Employer’s contributions to funds - - - - - - 

Employees’ contributions to funds  - 10 - - - 10 

Benefits paid  (571) (95) (1) (11) (4) (682) 

Unvested past service cost - - - - - - 

Translation adjustment - 222 - 10 1 233 

Changes in scope of consolidation - - 17 6 11 34 

Other movements - (3) (2) (3) 26 18 

Obligations at Obligations at Obligations at Obligations at 30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012201220122012    23,23,23,23,249249249249    6,6,6,6,721721721721    54545454    481481481481    373373373373    30,30,30,30,878878878878    

             

Fair value of fund assets (7,667) (5,478) - (195) (163) (13,503) 

Unrecognised past service cost (111) - - (2) (1) (114) 

Provision for employee benefits atProvision for employee benefits atProvision for employee benefits atProvision for employee benefits at    30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    15,15,15,15,471471471471    1,1,1,1,243243243243    54545454    284284284284    209209209209    17,17,17,17,261261261261    

 

(in millions of Euros) 
 

France France France France     
United United United United 
KingdomKingdomKingdomKingdom    

ItalyItalyItalyItaly    
Other Other Other Other 

InternationalInternationalInternationalInternational    
Other Other Other Other 

ActivitiesActivitiesActivitiesActivities    
TotalTotalTotalTotal    

Obligations at Obligations at Obligations at Obligations at 31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    21,21,21,21,454454454454    6,6,6,6,027027027027 37373737    462462462462 287287287287 28,28,28,28,267267267267    

Fair value of fund assets (7,306) (4,978) - (181) (129) (12,594) 

Unrecognised past service cost (117) - - (3) (2) (122) 

Provision for employee benefits at Provision for employee benefits at Provision for employee benefits at Provision for employee benefits at 31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    14,14,14,14,031031031031    1,1,1,1,049049049049 37373737    278278278278 156156156156 15,15,15,15,551551551551    

 
  

21.4.221.4.221.4.221.4.2 France France France France     
 
The “France” segment mainly comprises EDF and ERDF, almost all of the employees of these companies 
benefit from IEG status including the special pension system and other IEG benefits. 
 
21.4.2.1 Details of changes in the provision  
 

(in millions of Euros) 

ObligationsObligationsObligationsObligations        Fund assetsFund assetsFund assetsFund assets    
Obligations Obligations Obligations Obligations     

net of net of net of net of     
fund assetsfund assetsfund assetsfund assets    

UnrecognUnrecognUnrecognUnrecognisisisised ed ed ed     
past service past service past service past service     

costcostcostcost    

Provision Provision Provision Provision     
in the in the in the in the     

balance sheetbalance sheetbalance sheetbalance sheet    

BalanceBalanceBalanceBalancessss    at at at at 31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    22221,1,1,1,454454454454    (7,(7,(7,(7,306)306)306)306)    14,14,14,14,148148148148    (117)(117)(117)(117)    14,14,14,14,031031031031    

Net expense for first-half 2012 884 (176) 708 6 714 

Change in actuarial gains and losses  1,482 (185) 1,297 - 1,297 

Employer’s contributions to funds - (10) (10) - (10) 

Employees’ contributions to funds  - - - - - 

Benefits paid  (571) 10 (561) - (561) 

Unvested past service cost - -  - - - 

Other movements  - - - - - 

BalanceBalanceBalanceBalancessss    at at at at 30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    23,23,23,23,249249249249    (7,(7,(7,(7,667)667)667)667)    15,15,15,15,582582582582    (111)(111)(111)(111)    15,15,15,15,471471471471    

 
The change in actuarial gains and losses mainly relates to the 0.5 point decline in the discount rate for long-
term commitments to employees, which is 4.5% at 30 June 2012 (5.0% at 31 December 2011). 
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21.4.2.2 Post-employment and long-term employee benefit expenses  

(in millions of Euros) 

30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012 2012 2012 2012     

Current service cost (255) 

Interest expense (discount effect) (534) 

Expected return on fund assets 176 

Past service cost (6) 

Change in actuarial gains and losses – long-term benefits (95) 

Effect of plan curtailment or settlement - 

Net postNet postNet postNet post----employment and other longemployment and other longemployment and other longemployment and other long----term employee benefit expensesterm employee benefit expensesterm employee benefit expensesterm employee benefit expenses    
    

(714)(714)(714)(714)    

including:   

Operating expense (356) 

Financial expense    (358) 

  

21.4.2.3 Actuarial assumptions 
 
(%) 

30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    31/31/31/31/12121212/2011/2011/2011/2011    

Discount rate 
4.50% 5.00% 

Expected return on fund assets 
4.70% 4.70% 

Wage increase rate 
2.00% 2.00% 

 
In France, the discount rate for long-term obligations to employees is determined based on the return on a 
government bond of comparable duration - the 2035 French Treasury bond, which has a duration of 14 
years consistent with the duration of employee benefit obligations - plus a spread calculated on the leading 
nonfinancial companies, also over a comparable duration. 
 

The Group revised the discount rate to 4.5% for first-half 2012 as a result of this method. 
 

21.4.321.4.321.4.321.4.3 United KingdomUnited KingdomUnited KingdomUnited Kingdom    

 
21.4.3.1 Details of the change in the provision 
 

(in millions of Euros) 

ObliObliObliObligations gations gations gations     Fund assetsFund assetsFund assetsFund assets    
Obligations net of Obligations net of Obligations net of Obligations net of 

fund assetsfund assetsfund assetsfund assets    
UnrecognUnrecognUnrecognUnrecognisisisised ed ed ed     
past service costpast service costpast service costpast service cost    

Provision in Provision in Provision in Provision in 
the balance the balance the balance the balance 

sheetsheetsheetsheet    

BalanceBalanceBalanceBalancessss    at at at at 31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    6,6,6,6,027027027027    (4,(4,(4,(4,978)978)978)978)    1,1,1,1,049049049049    ----    1,1,1,1,049049049049    

Net expense for first-half 2012 244 (130) 114 - 114114114114    

Change in actuarial gains and losses  316 (118) 198 - 198198198198    

Employer’s contributions to funds - (156) (156) - (156)(156)(156)(156)    

Employees’ contributions to funds  10 (10) - - ----    

Benefits paid  (95) 95 - - ----    

Unvested past service cost - -  - - ----    

Translation adjustment 222 (182) 40 - 40404040    

Changes in scope of consolidation - - - - ----    

Other movements (3) 1 (2) - (2)(2)(2)(2)    

BalanceBalanceBalanceBalancessss    at at at at 30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    6,6,6,6,721721721721    (5,(5,(5,(5,478)478)478)478)    1,1,1,1,243243243243    ----    1,1,1,1,243243243243    
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21.4.3.2 Post-employment benefit expenses and long-term employee benefit expenses  

(in millions of Euros) 

30/30/30/30/6/2012 6/2012 6/2012 6/2012     

Current service cost (100) 

Interest expense (discount effect) (144) 

Expected return on fund assets 130 

Effect of plan curtailment or settlement - 

PostPostPostPost----employment and other longemployment and other longemployment and other longemployment and other long----term employee benefit expensesterm employee benefit expensesterm employee benefit expensesterm employee benefit expenses    (114)(114)(114)(114)    

including:   

Operating expense (100) 

Financial expense    (14) 

 
21.4.3.3 Actuarial assumptions 

(%) 
30/30/30/30/6/2012 6/2012 6/2012 6/2012     31/31/31/31/12/12/12/12/2011201120112011    

Discount rate 4.40% 4.70% 

Expected return on fund assets 5.10% 5.10% 

Wage increase rate 4.60% 4.70% 

 

21.521.521.521.5 OTHEROTHEROTHEROTHER    PROVISIONS PROVISIONS PROVISIONS PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABIAND CONTINGENT LIABIAND CONTINGENT LIABIAND CONTINGENT LIABILITIESLITIESLITIESLITIES    

21.5.121.5.121.5.121.5.1 OTHEROTHEROTHEROTHER    PROVISIONSPROVISIONSPROVISIONSPROVISIONS    
 
Details of changes in other provisions are as follows: 
 

 
 

Provisions for onerous contracts include the fair value of: 
���� British Energy sales contracts, amounting to €53 million at 30 June 2012 (€130 million at 31 December 

2011); 
���� CENG sales contracts amounting to €494 million at 30 June 2012 (€491 million at 31 December 2011). 
 

At 30 June 2012, other provisions include provisions of €574 million for greenhouse gas emission quotas 
and renewable energy certificates (€466 million at 31 December 2011).  
    
        

 
 
 
 
(in millions of Euros) 

31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    
    

IncreasesIncreasesIncreasesIncreases    
    

DecreasesDecreasesDecreasesDecreases    
Changes in Changes in Changes in Changes in 

scopescopescopescope    
Other changesOther changesOther changesOther changes    30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    

UtilUtilUtilUtilisatisatisatisationsionsionsions    ReversalsReversalsReversalsReversals    

Provisions for contingencies related 
to investments 

194 - - (18) - (2) 174174174174    

Provisions for tax liabilities 266 24 (2) - 148 1 437437437437    

Provisions for litigation 563 6 (12) (36) 71 2 594594594594    

Provisions for onerous contracts  768 18 (117) - - 16 685685685685    

Other provisions 1,153 606 (469) (45) 179 (85) 1,1,1,1,339339339339    

Other provisionsOther provisionsOther provisionsOther provisions    2,2,2,2,944944944944    654654654654    (600)(600)(600)(600)    (99)(99)(99)(99)    398398398398    (68)(68)(68)(68)    3,3,3,3,229229229229    
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21.5.221.5.221.5.221.5.2 CONTINGENT LIABILITIESCONTINGENT LIABILITIESCONTINGENT LIABILITIESCONTINGENT LIABILITIES    
 
The main changes during the first half-year of 2012 compared to the contingent liabilities reported in note 
45 to the consolidated financial statements for 2011 are as follows: 
 
21.5.2.1 Arbitration request by the Baden-Württemberg region / EnBW  
 
On 22 February 2012 EDF International received a request for arbitration filed with the International 
Chamber of Commerce by the German company Neckarpri GmbH, the vehicle for the Baden-Württemberg 
region’s acquisition of the EDF group’s stake in EnBW, which was agreed on 6 December 2010 and 
completed on 17 February 2011. 

Neckarpri claims that the price paid for the EDF group‘s investment in EnBW was excessive and therefore 
constitutes illegal State aid. On those grounds, it is claiming reimbursement of the allegedly excess portion 
of the price. This was initially estimated at €2 billion in the request for arbitration, but was re-estimated at 
€840 million on 11 July 2012 in a new independent report on the valuation of EnBW commissioned by 
Baden-Württemberg. Should the reimbursement claim be rejected, as an alternative Neckarpri is seeking 
cancellation of the sale of the EDF group’s stake in EnBW. 
 

EDF considers this claim unfounded and a misuse of law, and intends to sue for damages for all the kinds of 
prejudices caused by this action. 

 
21.5.2.2 General Network – Rejection of the European Commission’s appeal  
 
On 15 December 2009 the European Union Court cancelled the European Commission’s decision  
of 16 December 2003 that had classified the tax treatment of provisions created for the renewal of the 
General Network at the time of EDF’s capital increase in 1997 as state aid, and ordered repayment to the 
French State of the discounted value, i.e. €1,224 million (paid by EDF in February 2004). The State therefore 
reimbursed this amount to EDF on 30 December 2009, then in February 2010 the European Commission 
filed an appeal before the Court of Justice of the European Union.  
On 5 June 2012, the Court of Justice of the European Union issued a decision rejecting the European 
Commission’s appeal and upheld the European Union Court’s decision of 15 December 2009.  
 
21.5.2.3 ERDF – Action against TURPE 3 tariff decisions  
 
On 17 August 2009, a claim was filed with the French Council of State by certain energy market players, 
seeking cancellation of the TURPE3 tariff decisions of 5 May and 5 June 2009.  
The Council of State gave a decision on 28 March 2012 which confirmed the validity of the procedure for 
adopting TURPE 3. However, before delivering a judgment on the substance of the case, it has requested 
an independent expert’s opinion, in particular on the method used to determine the weighted average cost 
of capital.  
 
21.5.2.4 Edison mandatory tender offer – Appeal of Carlo Tassara 
 
Carlo Tassara S.p.A., Edison’s largest minority shareholder, initiated action on 12 July 2012 before the Lazio 
(Rome) Regional Administrative Court, seeking an increase in the price of the mandatory tender offer for 
Edison shares launched by TdE. Carlo Tassara is also petitioning for suspension of the CONSOB’s decision of 
3 May 2012 allowing TdE to launch the offer at the price of €0.89 per share, and therefore suspension of 
the offer currently in process. At the court hearing on the question of suspension held on 25 July 2012, the 
court rejected the petition for suspension as the CONSOB had not given any decision in response to Carlo 
Tassara’s application for an increase in the offer price (see below). A further hearing has therefore been 
scheduled for 30 August 2012. Whatever the court decides regarding suspension, its decision regarding the 
question of the €0.89 offer price is not expected to be issued before late 2012 at the soonest.  
 
In parallel, on 31 May 2012 Carlo Tassara submitted an application to the CONSOB for an increase in the 
price of the mandatory tender offer. The deadline for the CONSOB’s reply is 3 August 2012. 
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22222222 SPECIAL FRENCH PUBLIC ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION CONCESSION SPECIAL FRENCH PUBLIC ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION CONCESSION SPECIAL FRENCH PUBLIC ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION CONCESSION SPECIAL FRENCH PUBLIC ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION CONCESSION 
LIABILITIESLIABILITIESLIABILITIESLIABILITIES        

The changes in special concession liabilities for existing assets and assets to be replaced are as follows:  

 (in millions of Euros) 
30/30/30/30/6666////2012012012012222    31/31/31/31/12121212////2012012012011111    

Value in kind of assets 40,861 40,307

Unamortised financing by the operator (19,774) (19,383)

Rights in existing assets Rights in existing assets Rights in existing assets Rights in existing assets ----    net valuenet valuenet valuenet value    21,21,21,21,087087087087    20,92420,92420,92420,924

Amortisation of financing by the grantor  10,210 9,923

Provisions for renewal 10,777 10,922

Rights in assets to be replacedRights in assets to be replacedRights in assets to be replacedRights in assets to be replaced    20,20,20,20,987987987987    20,84520,84520,84520,845

Special French public electricity distribution concession liabilities Special French public electricity distribution concession liabilities Special French public electricity distribution concession liabilities Special French public electricity distribution concession liabilities     42,42,42,42,074074074074    41,76941,76941,76941,769

 

The valuation methods for special concession liabilities are identical to those presented in the notes to the 
2011 consolidated financial statements, particularly note 1.3.2.6, which describes the impact of an 
alternative calculation method. This would lead to statement of contractual obligations at the discounted 
value of future payments required for replacement of assets operated under concession at the end of their 
useful life.  

23232323 CURRENT AND NONCURRENT AND NONCURRENT AND NONCURRENT AND NON----CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIESCURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIESCURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIESCURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    

23.123.123.123.1 BREAKDOWN BETWEEN CUBREAKDOWN BETWEEN CUBREAKDOWN BETWEEN CUBREAKDOWN BETWEEN CURRENT AND NONRRENT AND NONRRENT AND NONRRENT AND NON----CURRENT FINANCIAL CURRENT FINANCIAL CURRENT FINANCIAL CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIELIABILITIELIABILITIELIABILITIES S S S     

Current and non-current financial liabilities break down as follows: 

  30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012201220122012    31/31/31/31/12/201212/201212/201212/2012    

(in millions of Euros) 
NonNonNonNon----currentcurrentcurrentcurrent    CurrentCurrentCurrentCurrent    TotalTotalTotalTotal    NonNonNonNon----currentcurrentcurrentcurrent    CurrentCurrentCurrentCurrent    TotalTotalTotalTotal    

Loans and other financial liabilities 45,364 14,686 60,60,60,60,050050050050    41,989 8,045 50,03450,03450,03450,034    

Negative fair value of derivatives held for trading - 3,928 3,3,3,3,928928928928    - 3,433 3,4333,4333,4333,433    

Negative fair value of hedging derivatives 746 1,453 2,2,2,2,199199199199    699 1,311 2,0102,0102,0102,010    

Financial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilities    46,46,46,46,110110110110    20,20,20,20,067067067067    66,66,66,66,177177177177    42,68842,68842,68842,688    12,78912,78912,78912,789    55,47755,47755,47755,477    

€2,005 million of the rise in the current portion of loans and other financial liabilities over first-half 2012 
relates to TdE and Edison. 

23.223.223.223.2 LOANS AND OTHER FINALOANS AND OTHER FINALOANS AND OTHER FINALOANS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIESNCIAL LIABILITIESNCIAL LIABILITIESNCIAL LIABILITIES    

23.2.123.2.123.2.123.2.1 CHANGES IN LOANS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIESCHANGES IN LOANS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIESCHANGES IN LOANS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIESCHANGES IN LOANS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    

(in millions of Euros) 

BondsBondsBondsBonds    
Loans from financial Loans from financial Loans from financial Loans from financial 

institutionsinstitutionsinstitutionsinstitutions    
Other financial Other financial Other financial Other financial 

liabilitiesliabilitiesliabilitiesliabilities    
Loans related to Loans related to Loans related to Loans related to 

finance leased assetsfinance leased assetsfinance leased assetsfinance leased assets    
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued     
IIIInterestnterestnterestnterest    

TotaTotaTotaTotallll    

Balances at Balances at Balances at Balances at 31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    37,37,37,37,524524524524    5,5,5,5,481481481481    5,5,5,5,567567567567    371371371371    1111,,,,091091091091    50,50,50,50,034034034034    

Increases 3,943 806 3,729 2 130 8,8,8,8,610610610610    

Decreases (536) (1,272) (289) - (38) (2,(2,(2,(2,135)135)135)135)    

Translation adjustments 359 41 73 - 1 474474474474    

Changes in scope of 
consolidation 

944 1,656 152 23 2 2,2,2,2,777777777777    

Other changes (1) 342 (29) (23) 19 (19) 290290290290    

Balances at Balances at Balances at Balances at 30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    42,42,42,42,576576576576    6,6,6,6,683683683683    9,9,9,9,209209209209    415415415415    1,1,1,1,167167167167    60,60,60,60,050050050050    

 
(1) Other changes in loans and financial liabilities correspond to fair value changes amounting to €358 million. 
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During the first half of 2012, EDF received the funds from the following bond issues: 
- €2 billion from a 10-year bond with annual coupon of 3.875%, on 18 January 2012; 
- €1 billion from a 15-year bond with coupon of 4.125%, and £500 million from a 25-year bond 

with coupon of 5.5%, on 27 March 2012. 
 

 
23.2.223.2.223.2.223.2.2 MATUMATUMATUMATURITY OF LOANS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIESRITY OF LOANS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIESRITY OF LOANS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIESRITY OF LOANS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    

 

 (in millions of Euros) 
BondsBondsBondsBonds    

Loans from Loans from Loans from Loans from     
financial institutionsfinancial institutionsfinancial institutionsfinancial institutions    

Other financial Other financial Other financial Other financial 
liabilitiesliabilitiesliabilitiesliabilities    

Loans related tLoans related tLoans related tLoans related to o o o 
financefinancefinancefinance----leased leased leased leased 

assetsassetsassetsassets    

Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued     
InterestInterestInterestInterest    

    
TotalTotalTotalTotal    

Less than one year 1,968 3,028 8,483 40 1,167 14,14,14,14,686868686666    

From one to five years  11,939 1,546 332 111 - 13,13,13,13,928928928928    

More than five years 28,669 2,109 394 264 - 31,31,31,31,436436436436    

Loans and other financial liabilities Loans and other financial liabilities Loans and other financial liabilities Loans and other financial liabilities     
at 30 June 2012at 30 June 2012at 30 June 2012at 30 June 2012    

42,42,42,42,576576576576    6,6,6,6,683683683683    9,9,9,9,209209209209    415415415415    1,1,1,1,167167167167    60,60,60,60,050050050050    

 
    

23.2.323.2.323.2.323.2.3 CREDIT LINESCREDIT LINESCREDIT LINESCREDIT LINES    
 
At 30 June 2012, the Group has credit lines with various banks totalling €9,128 million (€10,179 million at 
31 December 2011). 
 

    

30/30/30/30/6/6/6/6/2012012012012222    31/31/31/31/12/12/12/12/2020202011111111    

TotalTotalTotalTotal    
MaturityMaturityMaturityMaturity    

TotalTotalTotalTotal    
(in millions of Euros) < 1 < 1 < 1 < 1 yearyearyearyear    1 1 1 1 ----    5 5 5 5 yearsyearsyearsyears    > 5 > 5 > 5 > 5 yearsyearsyearsyears    

Confirmed credit lines 9,9,9,9,128128128128    1,310 7,812 6 10,17910,17910,17910,179    

 
The change in credit lines during first-half 2012 includes a favourable €234 million effect resulting from full 
consolidation of Edison from 24 May 2012. 

23.323.323.323.3 NET INDEBTEDNESSNET INDEBTEDNESSNET INDEBTEDNESSNET INDEBTEDNESS    

 

 (in millions of Euros) NotesNotesNotesNotes    30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    

Loans and other financial liabilities 23.2 60,050 50,034 

Derivatives used to hedge liabilities  (1,149) (834) 

Cash and cash equivalents     (4,920) (5,743) 

Liquid assets  16.2.2 (13,062) (9,024) 

Loan to RTE 15.1.2 (1,203) (1,400) 

Net indebtedness of assets held for sale   - 252 

Net indebtednessNet indebtednessNet indebtednessNet indebtedness        39,39,39,39,716716716716    33,28533,28533,28533,285    

 
The takeover of Edison, resulting in full consolidation of Edison and TdE, led to a €2,390 million increase in 
the EDF Group’s net indebtedness (see note 3.1.6). 
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24242424 OTHER LIABILITIESOTHER LIABILITIESOTHER LIABILITIESOTHER LIABILITIES    

Details of other liabilities are as follows  

 (in millions of Euros) 30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    

Advances and progress payments received 6,349 6,696 

Liabilities related to property, plant and equipment 1,796 2,404 

Tax and social charges 7,359 7,102 

Deferred income 5,739 5,935 

Other  2,850 2,752 

Other liabilitiesOther liabilitiesOther liabilitiesOther liabilities    24,24,24,24,093093093093    24,88924,88924,88924,889    

Non-current portion 4,803 4,989 

Current portion 19,290 19,900 

 
Advances and progress payments received at 30 June 2012 include monthly standing order payments by 
EDF’s residential and business customers amounting to €5,419 million (€5,239 million at 31 December 
2011). 
 
Tax and social charges at 30 June 2012 mainly include an amount of €632 million for CSPE income to be 
collected by EDF on energy delivered but not yet billed (€579 million at 31 December 2011). 
 
EDF’s deferred income at 30 June 2012 comprises €2,810 million (€2,814 million at 31 December 2011) of 
partner advances made under the nuclear plant financing plans. This includes an advance of €518 million 
paid by the Enel group under the industrial partnership agreement for the Flamanville EPR (€513 million at 
31 December 2011). This advance is subject to specific contractual conditions that allow Enel to withdraw 
its financial and operational contribution from the project in certain circumstances, in which case the EDF 
group would be obliged to repay the advance. 
Since 2010, deferred income has also included the advance paid to the EDF group under the agreement 
with the Exeltium consortium.  

25252525 OFF BALANCE SHEET COMOFF BALANCE SHEET COMOFF BALANCE SHEET COMOFF BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTSMITMENTSMITMENTSMITMENTS    

25.125.125.125.1 COMMITMENTS GIVENCOMMITMENTS GIVENCOMMITMENTS GIVENCOMMITMENTS GIVEN    

 (in millions of Euros)  30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    

Operating contract performance commitmentsOperating contract performance commitmentsOperating contract performance commitmentsOperating contract performance commitments    25.1.1 20,20,20,20,986986986986    19,79119,79119,79119,791    

Investment commitments givenInvestment commitments givenInvestment commitments givenInvestment commitments given    25.1.2 984984984984    629629629629    

Financing commitments givenFinancing commitments givenFinancing commitments givenFinancing commitments given    25.1.3 4,4,4,4,411411411411    3,9063,9063,9063,906    

 
Purchase commitments for commodities, energy and nuclear fuels amount to €39,928 million at 31 
December 2011. Apart from the effect of full consolidation of Edison, there was no significant variation in 
the first half of 2012. 
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25.1.125.1.125.1.125.1.1 OPERATING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE COMMITMENTS GIVENOPERATING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE COMMITMENTS GIVENOPERATING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE COMMITMENTS GIVENOPERATING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE COMMITMENTS GIVEN    
 
At 30 June 2012, these commitments comprise the following:  
 

 (in millions of Euros) 30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    

Satisfactory performance, completion and bid guarantees 560 566 

Commitments related to orders for operating items 4,807 4,354 

Commitments related to orders for fixed assets 11,699 12,083 

Other operating commitments 3,920 2,788 

Operating contract performance commitments givenOperating contract performance commitments givenOperating contract performance commitments givenOperating contract performance commitments given    20,20,20,20,986986986986    19,79119,79119,79119,791    

 
The change in off balance sheet commitments observed over the first half of 2012 mainly includes the 
effect of the change to full consolidation for Edison since 24 May 2012. 
 

25.1.225.1.225.1.225.1.2 INVESTMENT COMMITMENTS GIVENINVESTMENT COMMITMENTS GIVENINVESTMENT COMMITMENTS GIVENINVESTMENT COMMITMENTS GIVEN    
 
Commitments related to investments are as follows: 
 

 (in millions of Euros) 30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    

Investment commitments 948 427 

Other commitments related to Group investments 36 202 

Investment commitments givenInvestment commitments givenInvestment commitments givenInvestment commitments given 984984984984    629629629629    

 
The mandatory tender offer launched by the Group on 2 July 2012 to minority shareholders of Edison 
generates an investment commitment of €893 million in the half-year consolidated financial statements at 
30 June 2012. 
 
Investment commitments at 31 December 2011 included the commitment to purchase EnBW’s holdings in 
Polish entities for €301 million. The Group undertook these purchases on 16 February 2012. 
 
 

25.1.325.1.325.1.325.1.3 FINANCING COMMITMENTS GIVENFINANCING COMMITMENTS GIVENFINANCING COMMITMENTS GIVENFINANCING COMMITMENTS GIVEN    
    

Guarantees of borrowings by the Group at 30 June 2012 comprise the following: 
 

(in millions of Euros) 30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    

Security interests in real property 3,826 3,449 

Guarantees related to borrowings 246 158 

Other financing commitments 339 299 

Financing commitments givenFinancing commitments givenFinancing commitments givenFinancing commitments given    4,4,4,4,411411411411    3,9063,9063,9063,906    

25.225.225.225.2 COMMITMENTS RECEIVEDCOMMITMENTS RECEIVEDCOMMITMENTS RECEIVEDCOMMITMENTS RECEIVED    

The commitments received reported below do not include the credit lines presented in note 23.2.3 and 
electricity supply commitments. 
 

(in millions of Euros) 30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    

Operating commitments receivedOperating commitments receivedOperating commitments receivedOperating commitments received    1,1,1,1,826826826826    1,8711,8711,8711,871    

Investment commitments receivedInvestment commitments receivedInvestment commitments receivedInvestment commitments received    18181818    18181818    

Financing commitments receivedFinancing commitments receivedFinancing commitments receivedFinancing commitments received    242242242242    239239239239    
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26262626 EDF’S DEDICATED ASSETEDF’S DEDICATED ASSETEDF’S DEDICATED ASSETEDF’S DEDICATED ASSETSSSS    PORTFOLIOPORTFOLIOPORTFOLIOPORTFOLIO    

In an increasingly open electricity market, EDF is progressively building up a portfolio of financial assets 
dedicated to secure financing of long-term nuclear obligations, specifically decommissioning of the nuclear 
power plants and long-term management of radioactive waste. 
The key features of this portfolio, the principles governing its management and the applicable regulations 
are presented in note 48 to the financial statements at 31 December 2011. 
 
Dedicated assets are included in EDF’s consolidated financial statements at the following values: 
 
 

Balance sheet presentatioBalance sheet presentatioBalance sheet presentatioBalance sheet presentationnnn    30/30/30/30/6/20126/20126/20126/2012    31/31/31/31/12/201112/201112/201112/2011    
(in millions of Euros) 

Equities  6,688 5,801 

Debt instruments and cash portfolio  7,407 7,510 

Dedicated assets  Dedicated assets  Dedicated assets  Dedicated assets  ––––    equities and debt instrumentsequities and debt instrumentsequities and debt instrumentsequities and debt instruments    Available-for-sale financial assets 14,14,14,14,095095095095    13,31113,31113,31113,311    

Currency/equity hedging derivatives Fair value of hedging derivatives - (22) 

Other  - 2 

Total diversified investments (bonds and equities)Total diversified investments (bonds and equities)Total diversified investments (bonds and equities)Total diversified investments (bonds and equities)     14,14,14,14,095095095095    13,29113,29113,29113,291    

RTE (50% of the Group’s investment) RTE (50% of the Group’s investment) RTE (50% of the Group’s investment) RTE (50% of the Group’s investment) (1)(1)(1)(1)    Investments in associates 2,2,2,2,371371371371    2,3102,3102,3102,310    

Total dedicated assetsTotal dedicated assetsTotal dedicated assetsTotal dedicated assets     16,16,16,16,466466466466    15,60115,60115,60115,601    

(1) The value of RTE shares allocated to dedicated assets at 31 December 2011 has been adjusted for the €(58) million impact of the 
change in accounting method for actuarial gains and losses on post-employment benefits.  

 
Allocations to the dedicated assets portfolio were suspended in October 2011 but resumed in January 
2012, and the cash allocation to the dedicated assets portfolio for first-half 2012 amounts to €366 million  
(€210 million in first-half 2011). 
 
At 30 June 2012, the difference between the fair value and acquisition cost of diversified equity and bond 
instruments included in equity is a positive €719 million before taxes (€219 million at 31 December 2011). 

27272727 RELATED PARTIESRELATED PARTIESRELATED PARTIESRELATED PARTIES    

There have been no significant changes since 31 December 2011 in the types of transaction undertaken 
with related parties. In particular, the Group has significant ongoing relationships with public-sector 
enterprises, primarily the Areva Group for the supply, transmission and reprocessing of nuclear fuel and 
maintenance of nuclear plants. The Areva Group is also a supplier to the EPR (European Pressurised Reactor) 
project, contributing to the formation of commitments on fixed asset orders. 
 
Transactions with RTE are presented in note 15.1. 
 

28282828 SUBSEQUENT EVENTSSUBSEQUENT EVENTSSUBSEQUENT EVENTSSUBSEQUENT EVENTS    

28.128.128.128.1 MANDATORY TENDER OFFMANDATORY TENDER OFFMANDATORY TENDER OFFMANDATORY TENDER OFFER BY THE EDF GROUP ER BY THE EDF GROUP ER BY THE EDF GROUP ER BY THE EDF GROUP FOR EDISON SHARESFOR EDISON SHARESFOR EDISON SHARESFOR EDISON SHARES    

On 27 June 2012 the Italian market authority CONSOB authorised Transalpina di Energia S.r.l. (TdE), a fully-
owned EDF group subsidiary, to launch the mandatory tender offer as announced for the ordinary shares in 
Edison S.p.A. it does not yet own. This concerns 1,003,045,298 shares representing 19.36% of the capital 
of Edison and the offer price is €0.89 per share. 
The offer opened on 2 July 2012 and will close on 3 August 2012 unless it is extended. 


